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Independent Auditor's Report 

Honorable County Judge and Commissioners Comprising 
The Commissioners Court of Jones County 
Anson, Texas 79501 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying fmancial statements of the governmental activities, the blended component units, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund infonnation of Jones County, Texas, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Jones County, Texas's basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the 
governmental activities, the blended component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund infonnation of Jones County, 
Texas, as of December 31, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are required to be independent of Jones County, Texas, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to 
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Jones County, Texas's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the 
financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted 
auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a 
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the 
financial statements. 

AICPA) 
6 

Governmental 
Audit Quality Center 



James E. Rodgers and Company, P.C. 
In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards And Government Auditing Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedw-es that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Jones County, Texas's internal control. 
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt 
about Jones County, Texas's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis and 
budgetary comparison infonnation, and GASB 68 and 75 schedules for pension and OPEB Liabilities and contributions be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such infonnation is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary infmmation in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing 
the infonnation for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fonning opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise Jones County, 
Texas's basic financial statements. The accompanying combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Unij'orm Administrative 
Requirements, Cost I'rincipals, and Audit Requirement/or Federal Awards, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and arc not 
a required part of the basic financial statements. Such infonnation is the responsibility of management and was derived lrom and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor rund financial statements 
and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements 
as a whole. 

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other infonnation comprises the introductory 
and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the basic 
financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other infonnation and consider whether a 
material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncon-ccted material misstatement of the other 
infonnation exists, we are required to describe it in our report. 
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James E. Rodgers and Company, P.~. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 12, 2023, on our consideration of .Tones 
County's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Jones County's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standard1· in considering Jones County's internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

Respectfully submitted, 

James E. Rodgers and Company, P.C. 
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JONESCOUNTY,TEXAS 

Founded 1881 - Area 937 Sq. Miles - County Seat Anson 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

In this section of the Annual Financial and Compliance Report, we, the administration of Jones County, Texas 
discuss and analyze the County's financial performance for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022. Please 
read it in conjunction with the independent auditors' report which precedes this analysis and the County's Basic 
Financial Statements which begin following this analysis. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The County's net position increased by $3,153,083 as a result of this year's operations. 

As of December 31, 2022, the county's net position was $23,103,216. 

During the year, the County had expenses that were $48,S 81,528, this being $3,153,083 less than the 
$51,734,611 generated in charges for services, operating grants, other general revenues for all services. 

As of December 31, 2022, the County was obligated in the amount of $30,260,132 for long-term liabilities. 
Those long-term liabilities from the blended component units consisted of certificates of obligation and 
revenue bonds issued for the acquisition of a jail facility constructed by the Jones County Public Facilities 
Corporation (PFC), a detention center, warehouse, and administration building constructed by the Texas 
Midwest Public Facility Corporation (PFC), and the net pension liability of the county. 

The General Fund ended the year with a fund balance of $4,658,895, increasing by $519,940. 

The resources available for appropriation were $168,970 more than budgeted for in the General Fund. 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The government-wide financial statements 
include the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities (Exhibits A-1 and B-1 in the Basic 
Financial Statements section). These provide information about the activities of the County as a whole and 
present a longer-term view of the County's property and debt obligations and other financial matters. They 
reflect the flow of total economic resources in a manner similar to the financial reports of a business 
enterprise. 
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Fund financial statements (Series C, D and E Exhibits in the Basic Financial Statements section) report the 
County's operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about the 
County's most significant funds. For governmental activities, these statements tell how services were financed 
in the short term as well as what resources remain for future spending. They reflect the flow of current 
financial resources and supply the basis for intergovernmental revenue assessments and the appropriations 
budget. For proprietary activities, fund financial statements tell how goods or services of the County were 
sold to external customers and how the sales revenues covered the expenses of the goods or services. The 
remaining statements, fiduciary statements, provide financial information about activities for which the County 
acts solely as a trustee or agent. 

The notes to the financial statements (the last document in the Basic Financial Statements section) provide 
narrative explanations or additional data needed for full disclosure in the government-wide statements or the 
fund financial statements. 

The combining statements for non-major funds contain even more information about the County's individual 
funds. 

The following chart illustrates the required components of an annual financial report prepared in compliance 
with current governmental accounting and reporting standards. 

Government Wide Financial 
Starc111 cnts (accrual) 

* Statement ol'Net Position 
* Statement or Activities 

uired Com onents 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Managen•ent's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 
(Part ofRSI) 

Fund Financial Statements !"or Three 
Fund Types 

I 
(iQvemmcntal Eumls (111adi1Jed ei.i:11a 1ul) Reconciliation 

I •1:!alancc Sheet 
•statement of Revenues, Expendilures, and 
Changes in hind l:lalancc 

ernprilllno,: fa11uls (11~ rnnll 
• Fund Statement o!"Net Position 
• Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Fund Equity 
*Statement of Cash Flows 

Fidm,iae'. Eunds (n~1mml) 
•stalement of Net Position 
•stalcment ol"Changes in Net Position 

Notes to Financial Statcmcntll 

Rcq uired Su pplemenllll Information (RSI) 
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Reporting the County as a Whole 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 

The analysis of the County's overall financial condition and operations begins in the first part of the Basic 
Financial Statements section. Its primary purpose is to show whether the County is better off or worse off as a 
result of the year's activities. The Statement of Net Position includes all the County's assets and liabilities at 
the end of the year, while the Statement of Activities includes all the revenues and expenses generated by the 
County's operations during the year. These apply the accrual basis of accounting which is the basis used by 
private sector companies. 

All of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or 
paid. The County's revenues are divided into those provided by outside parties who share the costs of some 
programs, such as revenues provided by user fees, licenses, permits, or revenues from other governments 
(intergovernmental revenues), grants provided by the State of Texas (operating grants and contributions), or 
property taxes and other miscellaneous revenues (general revenues). All the County's assets are reported 
whether they serve the current year or future years. Liabilities are considered regardless of whether they must 
be paid in the current or future years. 

These two statements report the County's net position and changes in them. The County's net position (the 
difference between assets and liabilities) provides one measure of the County's financial health, or financial 
position. Over time, increases or decreases in the County's net position are one indicator of whether its 
financial health is improving or deteriorating. To fully assess the overall health of the County, however, you 
should consider non-financial factors as well, such as changes in the County's population, its property tax base, 
and the condition of the County's facilities and infrastructure. 

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the County into two kinds of 
activities: 

Governmental activities-All of the County's basic services are reported here, including general 
administration, public safety, judicial, health and social services, and infrastructure (roads and bridges). 
Property taxes, intergovernmental revenues, user fees, and state and federal grants finance most of these 
activities. 

Business-type activities-The County does not presently maintain business-type activities. 

Reportine; the County's Most Significant Funds 

Fund Finattcia/ Statements 

The fund financial statements (which begin after the government wide statements) provide detailed 
information about the most significant funds-not the County as a whole. Laws and contracts require the 
County to establish some funds, such as potential grants received. The County's administration establishes 
other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes (like juvenile probation activities). 
The County utilizes two kinds of funds-governmental and proprietary. The proprietary type funds, such as 
internal service funds, use a different accounting approach. 
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Governmental funds-All of the County's basic services are reported in governmental funds. These funds 
use the modified accrual basis of accounting (a method that measures the receipt and disbursement of cash 
and all other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash) and report balances that are available for 
future spending. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the County's 
general operations and the basic services it provides. We describe the differences between governmental 
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental 
funds in reconciliation schedules following each of the fund financial statements. 

Proprietary funds-The County presently utilizes a pension trust proprietary type fund. In this type of fund, 
the same accounting methods employed in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities is 
used. 

The County as Trustee 

Reporting the County's Fiduciary Responsibilities 

The County is the trustee, or fiduciary, for various funds collected for other government entities such as the 
State of Texas and various funds held for minors as required by court order. The County performs collection 
activities and disburses such funds on a routine basis. All of the County's fiduciary activities are reported in a 
separate Statement of Fiduciary Net Position (Exhibits E-1 and E-2). We exclude these resources from the 
County's other financial statements because the County cannot use these assets to finance its operations. The 
County is only responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are collected and distributed 
properly, and that such collection activities comply with the intergovernmental contract for collection with 
those entities and individuals. 
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

The County has presented net position measurements and changes in net position for previous and current 
years. Our analysis focuses on the net position (Table I) and changes in net position (Table II) of the County's 
governmental and business-type activities for the previous and current years. 

Net position of the County's governmental activities increased during the current year. Unrestricted net 
position - the part of net position that can be used to finance day-to-day operations without constraints 
established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal requirements - was $14,494,949 at the 
current year end. The change in total net position can be broken down into the following components: (1) 
total governmental revenues exceeded expenditures; (2) the County had capital outlay expenditures and debt 
service principal payments on long-term debt; (3) current depreciation expense; ( 4) proceeds from additional 
long tenn debt financing (None), (5) miscellaneous adjustments and (6) reduction in expense with the current 
year GASB 68 reporting of the net pension liability. 

Table I 
JONES COUNTY, TEXAS 

Net Position 
Governmental Business-Type 

Activities Activities Totals 
2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 

Current and other asst!ts $18,654,938 $19,314,333 $0 $0 $18,654,938 $t9,314,33J 
Capital assets 39,481,934 38,203,039 0 0 39,481,934 38,203,039 
Net Pension Asset 0 1,152,048 0 0 0 1,152,048 
IJdhred outflows - Pension Plan 1.557.595 1,050,801 0 0 1,557,595 1.050.801 

Total assets and deferred outflows $59,694,467 $59, 720,22 t $0 $0 $59,694,467 $59,720.221 
Long-term liabilities $35.707,642 $30,540,132 ,,ro $0 $35,707,642 $30,540,132 
Other liabilities 2,561,830 3,601,677 0 0 2,561,830 3,601,677 
Net Pension Liability II 1,474,862 0 0 0 1,474,862 0 

Deterred inflows - Pension Plan () 2,475,196 0 0 0 2.475.196 
Total liabilities and deferred inflows $39,744,334 $36,617,005 $0 $0 $39,744,334 $36 ,6 t 7,005 

Net Position: 

Net Investment in capital assets $3,616,934 $7,662,907 $0 $0 $3,616,934 $7,662,907 
Restricted 7,169,553 5,558,()93 0 0 7,169,553 5,558,093 
IJnrestricted ....r- - - 9,163,646 . 9,882.216 0 0 9.163.646 9,882.216 

Total Net Position $19,950,133 $23,103,216 $0 $0 $19,950,133 $23,103,216 
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Table II 
JONES COUNTY, TEXAS 

Chan~es in Net Position 

Gove rnmenta I Business-Type 
Activities Activities Totals 

2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 
Program Kevenucs: 

Charges ror Services J $1,227,388 $1,582,034 $0 $0 $1,227,388 $1,582,034 
Operating &capital grants and contributions 35,875,003 40,137,229 () 0 35,875,003 40,137,229 

G:nerul Revenues: 

Maintenance and operations taxes 5,023,394 5,401,971 0 0 5,023,394 5,401,971 
Debt service taxes 543,848 487,630 0 0 543,848 487,630 
lnveslmt:nt Eamings ~ 35,937 135,198 0 0 35,937 135,198 
Misccllancm,s {Fines, elc.) 4.139.400 3.990549 () 0 4,139,400 3,990.549 

Total Revenues $46,844,970 $51,734,611 $0 $0 $46,844,970 $5 I, 734,611 
&.pensu 

General Government - Adrnin is tration $1,570,866 $3,385,206 $0 $0 $1,570,866 $3,385,206 
General Government - Financial 155,646 172,471 0 0 155,646 172,471 
C,cneral Go vem men t - Facilities Managcrrent 558,211 385,301 0 0 558,211 385,301 
Public Safety and Corrections I 30,693,83 ! 39,060,186 0 0 30,693,831 39,060,186 
Judicial a11d Legal 

I 1,270,112 1,355,647 0 0 1,270,112 1,355,647 
Health and Hurmn Services 254,714 243,135 0 0 254,714 243,135 
Infrastructure and Environmental Services 2,761,642 3,134,714 0 u 2,761,642 3,134,714 
Connmnity and Fco110mic Development 0 () 0 0 0 () 

Interest on Long-Tenn Debt 646,395 844,868 0 0 646,195 844,868 

= 
Total Exvenses $37,911,417 $48,581,528 $0 $0 $37,911,417 $48,581,528 

Inc re as e in net position before 

transfers ands pedal i lems $8,933,553 $3,153,083 $0 $0 $8,933,553 $3,153,083 
]1'rans furs 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Fxlraord inaiy And Special Items () 0 0 0 () 0 
Prior Period Adjuslmen(-T1<Midwest PrC (2,341,312) 0 0 0 (2,341 ~112) 0 
Net Position at January I 13,357,892 19,950,133 0 0 13.357,892 19,950.133 

Total Net Position $19,950,133 $23,103,216 $0 $0 $19,950,133 $23,103,216 

The County's total revenues increased during the current year. The total cost of all programs and services also 
increased during the current year, 

The County took action this year to control cost increases and to keep its fund balance at an acceptable level 
including a slight reduction in property tax rates. 

• The County maintained salary and wage costs for staff at a slight increase from prior years, providing 
for only minimal cost of living raises, 

• Other budget categories were maintained at prior year levels, 
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THE COUNTY'S FUNDS 

The County presents governmental funds (as presented on the balance sheet in Exhibit C-1 and statement of 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance in Exhibit C-3). The following chart illustrates the 
County's revenue by source for the last two fiscal years. 

JONES COUNTY TEXAS 

REVENUES BY SOURCE 

Property Taxes 
Intergovernmental Revenue & Grants 
Charges for Services 
Licenses & Permits 
Fines 
Investment Earnings 
Other Revenue 
TOTALS 

Year 2021 
$5,124,252 
35,875,003 

1,017,693 
347,928 
209,698 
35,937 

1,425,128 
$44,035,639 

Year 2022 
$5,506,127 
40,137,228 

1,031,773 
373,752 
176,515 
135,198 

1,695,265 
$49,055,858 

Revenues by Source 

Other Revenue 

Investment Earnings 

Fines 

Licenses & Permits 

Charges for Services 

Intergovernmental 
Revenue & Grants 

Property Taxes 

$0 $10,000 $20,000 $30,000 
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$40,000 $50,000 

Thousands 

■Year2022 
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The County's operating expenditures largely consist of personal services (both salaries and benefits) cost for 
personnel and purchased and contracted services. The following chart illustrates the significance of the 
County's expenditures by object. 

JONES COUNTY, TEXAS 
EXPENDITURES BY OBJECT I 

Year 2021 Year 2022 
Salaries and Wages $3,982,305 $4,382,741 
Employee Benefits 1,603,381 1,774,254 
Purchased Professional & Technical Services 27,164,947 35,057,489 
Purchased Property Services 669,276 686,435 
Supplies 500,741 618,015 
Other Operating Expenditures 2,413,217 2,930,619 
Debt Service - Principal and Interest 6,275,001 6,295,002 
Capital Outlay 5,288,647 583,109 

Total $47,897,515 $52,327,664 

j 
Cap Ital Outlay ~• --...., 

' 

Del>t Service - Principal and Interest 
1 

1------' 

Other Operating Expenditures ~ 
Supplies ' 

I 

Purchased Property Services ~ 

Purchased Professional & Technical Serviees 
I 

Employee Benefits 

Salaries and Wages ~ 

-I-------.J'---------1---+----+---+----+----+--~ 
$0 $5,000,000 $10,000,WO $15,000,000 $20,000,000 $26,000,000 $30,000,000 $35,000,000 $40,000,000 

I ■Year 2022 Cl Year 2021 I 

Budget Amendments 

Over the course of the year, the Commissioner's Court revised the County's budget several times, although 
none of those amendments were significant. 
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Capital Assets 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the County had $61,121,337 invested in capital assets, including land, 
buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment, and roads and bridges infrastructure. The current year 
additions and deletions are as follows: 

This year's major additions included: 

JACE Bldg Mgmt System 

Walk n Roll WR90 

1985 Ford 7710 & Boom Shredder 

2018 JD 672G Grader 

800 Gal Trailer Sprayer 

JD 31 OG Backhoe 

JD 6105E & Attachments 

Freezer - Everest Model EFS3 

3 Chevy 2021 Vehicle Safety Upgrade 

Mack Dump Truck 

2022 Chevy Tahoe 

TOTAL ADDITIONS 

Deletions 

NET ADDITIONS 

$ 

$ 

$ 

23,264 

23,430 

8,000 

210,000 

8,795 

38,000 

155,434 

6,785 

68,066 

42,275 

49,059 

633,108 

219,665 

413,443 

Additional information about the County's capital assets is presented in Note IV.F to the financial statements. 

Debt 

The County's long-term debt (excluding the net pension liability) as of December 31, 2022: 

Date Issued Debt Payable To Asset Purchased De ht Balance 2023 Payments 

10/1/2009 2009 Revenue Bonds PFC New Jail Facility $ 24,900,000 $ 747,000 
2/22/2012 Certificate of Obligation Bonds New Jail Facility 4,865,000 480,850 
2/22/2012 2012 Revenue Bonds New Jail Facility 670,000 71,825 

Unamortiz.ed Discount/Premium on Bonds New Jail Facility 105,133 NIA 
Accrued Interest On Long-Tenn Debt as of 12/31/2022 122,923 NIA 

TOTALS $ 30,663,056 $ 1,299,675 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

The County's officials considered many factors when setting the year 2023 budget and tax rates. Some of 
those factors were the economy, population data, property tax base valuation, and other factors. These 
indicators were taken into account when adopting the General Fund budget for 2023. The County's General 
Fund budgeted expenditures for 2023 totaled $6,253,229. This represents a decrease from the final amended 
year 2022 budget. The County will use its revenues to finance programs and services it currently offers. The 
County has added no major new programs or services to the 2023 budget. 
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CONTACTING THE COUNTY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, elected officials, and investors and 
creditors with a general overview of the County's finances and to show the County's accountability for the 
money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the 
County Judge's office at Jones County Judge, PO Box 148, Anson, Texas 79501; (325) 823-3741. 
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GOVERNMENT WIDE STATEMENTS 
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Data 

Control 

Codes 

ASSETS 
1010 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
I 030 Investments - Current 
1 050 Taxes Receivable, Net 
1260 Due from Other Governments 
1390 Due from Others 

Capital Assets: 

1710 Land Purchase and Improvements 
1720 Infh!.strueturc, Net 
1730 Buildings, Net 
1750 Furniture and Equipment, Net 
1800 Net Pension Asset 

1000 Total Assets 

JONESCOUNTY,TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

DECEMBER 31, 2022 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
1997 Deferred Outflow Related to Pension Plan 

1500 Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 

LIABILITIES 
2010 Accounts Payable 
2070 Intergovernmental Payable 
2140 Accrued Interest Payable 
2230 CJnearned Revenues 

Noncurrent I ,iabilities: 

2501 Due Within One Year 
Due in More Than One Year: 

2502 Bonds Payable - Noncurrent 

2000 Total Liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
2602 Deferred lnflow Related to Pension Plan 

2500 Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 

NET POSITION 
3200 Net Investment in Capital Assets & Lease Assets 

Restricted: 

3810 Restricted for State and Federal Grants 
3820 Re~trictcd for State Funds 
3860 Restricted for Debt Service 
3900 Unre~tril .. 1ed 

3000 Total Net Position 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
21 

EXHTBIT A-1 

Primary Government 

$ 

$ 

Governmental 

Activities 

3,772,472 
L0,713,985 
3,870,342 

940,994 
16,540 

58,564 
511,415 

33,475,501 
4,157,559 
I, 152,048 

58,669,420 

1,050,801 

1,050,801 

85,832 
37,262 

122,923 
3,355,660 

280,000 

30,260,132 

34,141,809 

2,475,196 

2,475,196 

7,662,907 

138,252 
1,796,683 
3,623,158 
9,882,216 

23,103,216 



JONES COUNTY, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

Data 

Control 

Codes 

Primary Government: 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES: 
100 General Government 
120 Judicial 
130 Executive 
140 Elections 
150 Financial Administration 
190 Other General Government Functions 
2UO Public Safety 
210 Corrections 
290 Other Public Safety 
JIO Highways and Streets 
400 Health and Welfare 
490 Other Operting Expense 
720 Interest on Debt 
790 Other Debt Service 

TOT AL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 

Progrnm Revenues 

Operating 
Charges for Grants and 

Expenses Services Contributions 

$ 2,606,145 $ 172,290 $ 543,576 
1,355,647 778,726 419,611 

117,959 25,200 
50,951 

172,471 402,390 
385,301 

3,129,996 63,545 2,187,920 
35,681,641 35,499,990 

248,549 
3,134,714 165,083 1,460,932 

243,135 
610,151 
843,838 

1,030 

$ 48,581,528 $ 1,582,034 $ 40,137,229 

General Revenues: 
Taxe~: 

Property Taxes, Levied for General Purposes 
Property Taxes, Levied for Debt Service 

Other Taxes 
Miscellaneous Revenue 
Investment Earnings 
Gain on Disposition of Personal Property 

Total General Revenues and Transfers 

Change in Net Position 
Net Position - Beginning 

Net Position - Ending 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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EXHIBIT B-1 

Net (F.xpense) 
Revenue and 

Changes in Net 
Position 

PrimmyGov. 

Govemmental 
Activities 

$ {1,890,279) 
(157,310) 

(92,759) 
(50,951) 
229,919 

(385,301) 
(878,53 I) 
(181,651) 
(248,549) 

(I ,508,699) 
(243,135) 
(610,151) 
(843,838) 

(1,030) 

(6,862,265) 

5,401,971 
487,630 
302,844 

3,645,304 
135,198 
42,401 

10,015,348 

3,153,083 

19,950,133 

$ 23,103,216 



GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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JONES COUNTY, TEXAS 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 3 l, 2022 

nata 

Control 

Codes 

ASSETS 
1010 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
1030 Investments - Cul1'ent 
10S0 Taxes Receivable 
1051 Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes (credit) 
1260 Due from Other Governments 
1300 Due from Other Funds 
1390 Due from Others 

1000 Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

2010 Accounts Payable 
2070 Intergovernmental Payable 
2080 Due to Other Funds 
2230 Unearned Revenues 
2300 Advance from Other Funds 

2000 Total Liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
2601 Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes 

2600 Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 

FUND BALANCES 
3450 Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction 
3480 Retirement of Long-Term Debt 
3490 Other Restricted Fwid Balance 
3530 Capital Expenditures for Equipment 
3545 Other Committed Fund Balance 
3590 Other Assigned Fund Balance 
3600 Unassigned Fund Balance 

3000 Total Fund Balances 

4000 fotal Liabilities, Deferred Inflows & Fund Balances 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

General 
Fund 

(4,160,734) 
7,515,682 
3,012,597 
(144,734) 
453,362 

1,213,496 
13,868 

7,903,537 

35,106 

12,870 

328,803 

376,779 

2,867,863 

2,867,863 

1,468,876 

3,190,019 

4,658,895 

7,903,537 

CSI.FRF Tx Midwest 
Grant PFC 
Fund Fund 

$ 3,307,344 $ 
48,316 2,914,6LO 

$ 3,355,660 $ 2,914,610 

$ - $ 

3,355,660 

3,355,660 

2,914,610 

2,914,610 

$ 3,355,660 $ 2,914,610 



EXHIBIT C-1 

TxMidwest Total 
PFC Debt Other Governmental 

Service Fund Funds Funds 

$ - $ 4,625,862 $ 3,772,472 
235,377 10,713,985 

1,053,481 4,066,07& 
(51,002) (195,736) 
487,632 940,994 
341,672 1,555,168 

2,672 16,540 

$ - $ 6,695,694 $ 20,869,501 

$ - $ 50,726 $ 85,832 
37,262 37,262 

12,870 
3,355,660 

1,213,496 1,542,299 

1,301,484 5,033,923 

1,002,483 3,870,346 

1,002,483 3,870,346 

138,252 138,252 
831,471 831,471 

1,796,683 4,711,293 
611,486 611,486 
911,195 2,380,071 
102,640 102,640 

3,190,019 

4,391,727 11,965,232 

$ - $ 6,695,694 $ 20,869,501 
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JONES COUNTY, TEXAS 
RECONCTLJATION OF THE GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 

The County does use an internal service fund to charge the costs of certain 
activities, such as self-insurance to appropriate functions in other governmental 
funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds would be included in 
governmental activities in the statement of net assets. The net effect of this 
consolidation is to increase (decrease) net position. 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and 
therefore are not reported in governmental funds. In addition, long-term liabilities, 
including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period, and, 
therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds. The net effect of including the 
beginning balances for capital assets (net of depreciation) and long-term debt in the 
governmental activities is to increase (decrease) net position. 

Current year capital outlays and long-term debt principal payments are expenditures 
in the fund financial statements, but they should be shown as increases in capital 
assets and reductions in long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements. 
The net effect of including the current year capital outlays and debt principal 
payments is to increase (decrease) net position. 

In prior years the County has implemented GASB 68 for the TCDRS Pension plan. 
The County has reported their net pension liability in the Government Wide 
Statement of Net Position. The items reported as a result of this implementation 
included a net pension asset (liability), a deferred resource inflow and a deferred 
resource outflow. The net effect of these was to decrease the ending net position. 

The current year depreciation expense increases accumulated depreciation. The net 
effect of the current year's depreciation is to decrease net position. 

Various other reclassifications and eliminations are necessary to convert from the 
modified accrual basis of accounting to accrual basis of accounting. These include 
recognizing deferred revenue as revenue, eliminating interfund transactions, 
reclassifying the proceeds of bond sales as an increase in bonds payable, and 
recognizing the liabilities associated with maturing long-term debt and interest. The 
net effect of these reclassifications and recognitions is to increase (decrease) net 
position. 

Net Position of Governmental Activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 

$ 

EXHIBIT C-2 

11,965,232 

-0-

3,368,745 

6,013,109 

(272,347) 

(1,890,079) 

3,918,556 

23,103,216 



JONESCOUNTY,TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

Data 

Control 

Codes 

REVENUES: 

Taxes: 
5110 Property Taxes 
5180 Other Taxes 
5190 Penalty and Interest on Taxes 
5200 Licenses and Permits 
5300 Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants 
5400 Charges for Services 
5510 Fines 
5610 Investment Earnings 
5700 Other Revenue 

5020 Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 

Current: 
0100 General Government 
0120 Judicial 
0130 Executive 
0140 Elections 
0150 Financial Administration 
0190 Other General Government Functions 
0200 Public Safety 
0230 Corrections 
0290 Other Public Safety 

Public Works: 
0310 Highways and Streets 
0400 Health and Welfare 
0490 Other 

Debt Service: 
0710 Principal on Debt 
0720 Interest on Debt 

6030 Total Expenditures 

1100 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
7912 Sale of Real and Personal Property 
7915 Transfers In 
7916 Premium or Discount on Issuance of Bonds 
8911 Transfers Out 

7080 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

1200 Net Change in Fund Balances 
0\00 Fund Balance - January I (Beginning) 
1300 Prior Period Adjustment 

3000 Fund Balance - December 31 (Ending) 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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General 
Fund 

$ 4,053,797 

11,406 
94,303 

86,903 
729,385 

63,130 
73,459 

303,506 

5,415,889 

1,064,501 
948,081 
J3J ,584 
53,410 

190,664 
349,263 

1,938,798 
8,093 

247,462 

255,660 

5,187,516 

228,373 

848,274 

(572,657) 

275,617 

503,990 

4,138,955 

15,950 

$ 4,658,895 

CSLFRF 

Grant 

Fund 

$ $ 

543,576 

543,576 

499,743 

29,340 

529,083 

14,493 

(14,493) 

(14,493) 

$ $ 

Tx Midwest 
PFC 

Fund 

37,368,410 

34,145 

37,402,555 

35,626,451 

35,626,451 

1,776,104 

(3,771,908) 

(3,771,908) 

(1,995,804) 

4,910,414 

2,914,610 



$ 

$ 

Ix Midwest 

PFC Debt 
ServiC(: Fund 

-

5,160,000 
573,348 

5,733,348 

(5,733,348) 

3,771,908 
1,961,440 

5,733,348 

-

$ 

$ 

Other 

Funds 

1,353,010 

5,017 
373,752 

2,138,339 
302,388 
113,385 
27,594 

1,380,353 

5,693,838 

135,531 
494,071 

54,793 
28,242 

3,302,641 

680,833 

511,480 
43,675 

5,251,266 

442,572 

14,325 
771,028 

(1,032,152) 

(246,799) 

195,773 

4,195,954 

4,391,727 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 5,406,807 
11,406 
99,320 

373,752 
40,137,228 

1,031,773 
176,515 
135,198 

1,683,859 

49,055,858 

1,699,775 
1,442,152 

131,584 
53,410 

190,664 
349,263 

1,938,798 
35,718,677 

275,704 

3,302,641 
255,660 
680,833 

5,671,480 
617,023 

52,327,664 

(3,271,806) 

14,325 
5,391,210 
1,961,440 

(5,391,210) 

1,975,765 

(1,296,041) 

13,245,323 

15,950 

$ 11,965,232 

EXHIBIT C-3 
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EXHIBIT C-4 
JONES COUNTY, TEXAS 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 

The county does not use an internal service funds to charge the costs of certain 
activities primarily to the governmental funds. The net income (loss) of this internal 
service fund would be reported with governmental activities. The net effect of this 
consolidation is to increase (decrease) the change in net position. 

Current year capital outlays and long-term debt principal payments are expenditures in 
the fund financial statements, but they should be shown as increases in capital assets 
and reductions in long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements. The net 
effect of removing the current year capital outlays and debt principal payments is to 
increase (decrease) the change in net position. 

The implementation of the requirements ofGASB 68 was effective for previous years. 
The entries required by GASB 68 did require that some expenses on Exhibit B-1 be 
adjusted. Total increase to expenses. The net effect on the change in net position on 
Exhibit B-1 is a decrease. 

Depreciation is not recognized as an expense in governmental funds since it does not 
require the use of current financial resources. The net effect of the current year's 
depreciation is to decrease the change in net position. 

Various other reclassifications and eliminations are necessary to convert from the 
modified accrual basis of accounting to accrual basis of accounting. These include 
recognizing deferred revenue as revenue, adjusting current year revenue to show the 
revenue earned from the current year's tax levy, eliminating interfund transactions, 
reclassifying the proceeds of bond sales, and recognizing the liabilities associated with 
maturing long-term debt and interest. The net effect of these reclassifications and 
recognitions is to increase (decrease) the change in net position. 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 

$ 

(1,296,041) 

-0-

6,013,109 

(1,366,816) 

(1 ,890,079) 

1,692,910 

3,153,083 



PROPRIETARY FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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ASSETS 

Current Assets: 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Total Assets 
LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities: 
Compensated Absences Payable 

Total Liabilities 
NET POSITION 

Restricted for Other Purposes 

Total Net Position 

JONES COUNTY, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2022 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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EXHIBIT D-1 

Govemrnen t.al Aclivilies 

$ 

$ 

Internal 

Service Fund 



JONES COUNTY, TEXAS EXHIBITD-2 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2022 

OPERATING REVENUES: 

Other Revenue 

Total Operating Revenues 

OPERA TING EXPENSES; 

Personnel Services - Employee Benefits 

Total Operating Expenses 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Governmental 
Activities 

Internal 

Service Fund 

$ 70&,271 

708,271 

708,271 

708,271 



JONES COUNTY, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 

Cash Received from Assessments - Other Funds 
Cash Payments for Other Operating Expenses 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash 

Provided By (Used For) Operating Activ ities: 
Operating Income (Loss) 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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EXHIBITD-3 

Governmental Aclivilies 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Internal 

Service Fund 

708,271 
(708,271) 



FIDUCIARY FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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JONESCOUNTY,TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2022 

ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Investments - Current 

Due from Other Governments 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable 

Intergovernmental Payable 

Due to Others 

Total Liabilities 

NET POSITION 

Restricted for Other Purposes 

Total Net Position 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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EXHIBITE-1 

GAP 

Insurance Custodial 

Fund Funds 

$ 99,370 $ 1,242,076 

62,700 

72,334 

99,370 1,377,110 

1,365 

462,957 

914,153 

1,365 1,377,110 

98,005 

$ 98,005 $ 



JONES COUNTY, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

ADDlTIONS: 
Other Revenue 

Total Additions 

DEDUCTIONS: 
Personnel Services• Salaries and Wages 
Personnel Services • Employee Benefits 
Purchased Property Services 
Other Operating Costs 

Total Deductions 

Net Change in Fiduciary Net Position 
Total Net Position -January I (Beginning) 

Total Net Position - December 31 (Ending) 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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GAP 
Insurance 

Fund 

$ 30,000 

30,000 

47,514 

47,514 

(17,514) 
115,519 

$ 98,005 

Custodial 
funds 

$ 78,510,143 

78,510,143 

330,783 
72,223 

78,107,137 

78,510,143 

$ 

EXHIBITE-2 



JONES COUNTY, TEXAS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. REPORTING ENTITY 

I. Primary Government: Jones County, Texas (the "County"), is a public corporation and political subdivision 
organized and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas. rt was incorporated in 1881. The County 
is located in West Texas and comprises a land area of 937 square miles. The county is governed by an elected 
Commissioners' Court composed of the County Judge and four County Commissioners. It provides services involving 
public safety, health and social welfare, culture and recreation, conservation, and the construction, improvement, 
maintenance, and acquisition of roads, bridges, and rights-of-way, in addition to general administration. 

The County prepares its basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles of the 
United States promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Council and other authoritative sources 
identified in Statement on Auditing Standards No. 69 of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants; and 
it complies with the requirements of the appropriate version of the State of Texas uniform accounting requirements 
and the requirements of contracts and grants of agencies from which it receives funds. 

The Commissioners Court {the "Court") is elected by voters within Jones County and has the authority to make 
decisions and significantly influence operations. [t also has the primary accountability for fiscal matters. Therefore, 
the County is a financial reporting entity as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Court ("GASB") in 
its Statement No. 14, "The Financial Reporting Entity" and amended by GASB Statement No. 61. 

2. Blended Component Units: In December of 2009, the Commissioners Court issued a certificate for order that 
created two nonprofit public facilities corporations under Chapter 303 of the Texas Local Government Code. The 
Jones County Public Facility Corporation (the "Corporation") was organized for the purpose of financing, on behalf 
of the County an eligible criminal detention and correctional facility and to be responsible for the operation of such 
facility. The operations of the facility were to be financed on an ongoing basis by the rental of jail space to third party 
entities, such as federal agencies and other local governments. All of the members of the Board of Directors of the 
Corporation are appointed by the Commissioners Court of the County and as of December 31, 2022, consisted of the 
County Judge, one County Commissioner, the County Sheriff, the County Auditor, and one public member. The 
Corporation is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report as a blended component unit. The 
Corporation's funds currently include a Debt Service Fund. The Commissioners Court elected to purchase the new 
jail facility due to the failure of all third parties to honor commitments for facility rental. On February 22, 2012, the 
County purchased the new jail facility from the Corporation from the issuance of certificates of obligation and revenue 
bonds for $7,830,000 ($6,900,000 Cert. of Obligation and $930,000 Revenue Bonds). In 2019 through 2022, the 
County started receiving rental income from the detention center funded through the Texas Midwest Public Facilities 
Corporation (PFC) and refinanced the existing bonds through the PFC with taxable revenue bonds. The Texas 
Midwest PFC became operational and has been included in the County financial statements beginning January 1, 
2021, including the debt service fund for the retirement of the 2021 issued taxable bonds of $32,745,000. 

3. Non-Component Unit: The Jones and Shackelford Counties Community Supervision and Corrections Department 
(also referred to as the Adult Probation Department and CSCD) is not listed as a component unit of the County. The 
Director of the CSCD is appointed by the Judge for the 259th Judicial District of the State of Texas which is not 
governed by the Commissioners Court of Jones County, Texas. The County is required by statute to provide facilities, 
utilities, and equipment for the operation of this department. In addition, the County provides administrative functions 
including accounting, risk management, and payroll preparation. The Jones and Shackelford Counties CSCD is 
responsible for the management and monitoring of adult residents of Jones and Shackelford Counties who are on 
criminal probation. Funding for salaries and CSCD personnel and many operating expenses are from various State 
Grants and Fees. 
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B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) report 
information for all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component unit. For the most 
part, the effect of inter-fund activity has been removed from these statements. 

In the Statement of Net Position, activities of the primary government may be classified either as governmental 
activities or business-type activities. Governmental activities, which are normally supported by taxes and inter­
governmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees 
and charges for support. 

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are 
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. 
Program revenues include: 

• Charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or 
privileges provided by a given function or segment, and, 

• Operating and capital grants and contributions restricted to use in meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or segment. 

Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for Governmental Fund~, Proprietary Funds, and Fiduciary Funds, 
although the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual funds are reported 
as separate columns in the fund financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 
are government-wide financial statements. They report information on all the Jones County non-fiduciary activities 
with most of the inter-fund activities removed. Governmental activities include programs supported primarily by 
intergovernmental revenues from participating taxing units. Business-type activities include operations that rely to a 
significant extent on fees and charges for support. 

Inter-fund activities between governmental funds and between governmental funds and proprietary funds appear as 
due to/due from on the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and Proprietary Fund Statement of Net Position and as 
other resources and other uses on the governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
Balance and on the Proprietary Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position. All inter­
fund transactions between governmental funds and between governmental funds and internal service funds are 
eliminated on the government-wide statements. Inter-fund activities between governmental funds and enterprise funds 
remain on the government-wide statements and appear on the government-wide Statement of Net Position as internal 
balances and on the Statement of Activities as inter-fund transfers. Inter-fund activities between governmental funds 
and fiduciary funds remain as due to/due from on the government-wide Statement of Activities. 

The fund financial statements provide reports on the financial condition and results of operations for three fund 
categories - governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. Since the resources in the fiduciary funds cannot be used for 
County operations, they are not included in the government-wide statements. The County considers some 
governmental funds major and reports their financial condition and results of operations in a separate column. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues result 
from providing goods and services in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations; they usually 
come from exchange or exchange-like transactions. All other revenues are non-operating. Operating expenses can 
be tied specifically to the production of the goods and services, such as materials and labor and direct overhead. Other 
expenses are non-operating. 
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C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
PRESENTATION 

The government-wide, Proprietary Fund, and Fiduciary Fund financial statements arc reported using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses 
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing ofrelated cash flows. Property taxes are recognized 
as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all 
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

Proprietary Funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a Proprietary 
Fund's principal ongoing operations. The County's Proprietary Fund is its Internal Service Fund. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, are generally followed 
in both the government-wide and Proprietary Fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not 
conflict with or contradict the guidance of the GASB. Governmental Fund financial statements are reported using the 
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 
recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be measurable if the 
transaction amounts can be determined and are considered to be available if they are collectible within the current 
period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this latter purpose, the government 
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within sixty days of the end of the fiscal period. Expenditures 
are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as with accrual accounting. However, non-matured interest on 
general long-term debt is recorded when due and certain compensated absences, claims, and judgments are recorded 
when the obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable financial resources. 

Property taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to 
accrual and so have been recorded as revenue of the current fiscal period. Entitlements and shared revenue are 
recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the accrual criteria are met. Operating grants are recorded as revenue when 
the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been met. All other revenue 
items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the government. 

D. FUND ACCOlJNTINC 

The County reports the following major governmental funds: 

1. The General Fund - The general fund is the County's primary operating fund. This fund accounts for 
all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

2. Other Special Revenue Funds - CSLFRF Grant and Texas Midwest PFC Fund are major funds for the 
current year. 

3. Debt Service Fund - The Texas Midwest PFC Debt Service Fund is a major fund for the current year. 

The County reports the following major enterprise fund(s): 

1. The County did not operate a major proprietary fund during the current year. 

Additionally, the County reports the following fund type(s): 

Governmental Funds: 

1. Special Revenue Funds - The County accounts for resources restricted to, or designated for, specific 
purposes by the County or a grantor in special revenue funds. Most Federal and some State financial 
assistance are accounted for in a Special Revenue Fund. Sometimes unused balances must be returned 
to the grantor at the close of specified project periods. 
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2. Debt Service Funds -The County accounts for resources accumulated and payments made for principal 
and interest on long-tenn general obligation debt of governmental funds in a debt service fund. The 
County maintained a non-major Debt Service Fund during the current fiscal year in connection with the 
Jail Facility purchased from the Public Facilities Corporation. 

3. Capital Projects Funds-Proceeds from long-tenn debt financing and revenues and expenditures related 
to authorized construction and other capital asset acquisitions are accounted for in a capital projects fund. 
The County did not maintain Capital Projects Funds during the current fiscal year. 

4. Permanent Funds - The County accounts for donations for which the donor has stipulated that the 
principal may not be expended and where the income may only be used for purposes that support the 
County's programs. The County did not maintain Permanent Funds during the current year. 

Proprietary Funds: 

5. Enterprise Funds - The County's activities for which outside users are charged a fee roughly equal to 
the cost of providing the goods or services of those activities are accounted for in an enterprise fund. The 
County did not operate an enterprise fund during the current year. 

6. Internal Service Funds - Revenues and expenses related to services provided to organizations inside 
the County on a cost reimbursement basis are accounted for in an internal service fund. The County 
maintained an Tntemal Service Fund during the current year. 

Fiduciary Funds: 

7. Private Purpose Trust Funds - The County accounts for donations for which the donor has stipulated 
that both the principal and the income may be used for purposes that benefit parties outside the County. 
The County did not maintain Private Purpose Trust Funds during the current year. 

8. Pension (and Other Employee Benefit) Trust Funds - These funds are used to account for local 
pension and other employee benefit funds that are provided by the County in lieu of or in addition to the 
Texas County District Retirement System in which the County participates. The County used an 
employee benefit trust fund to provide a partially self-funded health insurance for the gap between a low 
deductible and the actual insurance deductible. 

9. Investment Trust Fund - This fund is one in which the County holds assets in trust for other entities 
participating in an investment program managed by the County. The County did not have Investment 
Trust Funds during the current year. 

10. Custodial Funds - The County accounts for resources held in the various departments and elected 
officials for ultimate disposition to the State, the County, and private individual minors in Custodial 
Funds. 

11, Inter-fund Balances and Transfers -There were no balances due to internal service funds during the 
current year. All remaining balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) inter-fund 
goods and services are provided, or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the 
accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made. 

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to 
the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from 
the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due, and (3) 
use unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other 
funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations. 
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During the current year ended December 31, 2022, the County did not make a one-time transfer of funds 
from the general fund to the debt service fund to subsidize, in part, the County's obligation for interest 
and sinking fund requirements. However, there were transfers from the County Jail Project Fund to the 
debt service fund for the County's obligations for interest and sinking fund requirements. 

12. Deferred Outflows of Resources: 
The County reports decreases in net assets that relate to future periods as deferred outflows ofresources 
in a separate section of its government-wide and proprietary funds statements of net position. The 
deferred outflow of resources reported in this year's financial statements was for TCDRS pension 
liabilities. No deferred outflows of resources affect the governmental funds financial statements in the 
current year. 

13. Deferred Inflows of Resources: 
The County's governmental funds report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This 
separate financial statement clement reflects an increase in net assets that applies to a future period(s). 
The County will not recognize the related revenues until a future event occurs. The County has only one 
type of ilem which occurs because governmental fund revenues are not rccogn ized unti 1 available 
(collected not later than 60 days after the end of the County's fiscal year) under the modified accrual basis 
of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, unavailable property taxes and 
grants are reported in the governmental funds balance sheet. The County did not have deferred inflows 
of resources to report in its government-wide or proprietary fund financial statements for the current year 
in relation to participation in the TCDRS retirement system. 

14. Pensions: 
The fiduciary net position of the Texas County & District Retirement System of Texas (TCDRS) has 
been determined using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and full accrual basis of 
accounting. This includes for purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, pension expense, and information about 
assets, liabilities and additions to/deductions from TCDRS's fiduciary net position. Benefit payments 
(including refunds of employee contributions) are reCO.!,'Tiized when due and payable in accordance with 
the benefit terms. Investments arc reported at fair value. 

t<.:. OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

I. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows for proprietary funds, the County considers highly liquid 
investments to be cash equivalents if they have a maturity of three months or less when purchased. 

2. The County does not report inventories of supplies using first-in, first-out cost including consumable 
maintenance and office supply items due to the lack of materiality. Under the purchase method, supplies 
are recorded as expenditures when they are purchased. 

3. In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, 
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental 
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums 
and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the 
effective interest method. Bonds payable arc reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. 
Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as 
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as 
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources 
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether withheld 
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 
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4. The County maintains a vacation and sick leave policy available only to full-time employees. Full-time 
employees earn 6.66 hours of vacation per month and 8 hours of sick leave per month. Vacation and 
sick leave days are allowed to accumulate up to 80 hours and 240 hours respectively. The County has 
no liability for unused sick leave at termination of employment. 

5. Capital assets include land, buildings, furniture and equipment, and infrastructure assets. These assets 
are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide 
financial statements. The County defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more 
than $5,000 and an estimated useful life of more than two years. Such assets are recorded at historical 
cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at 
estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend 
assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as 
projects are constructed. 

Buildings, furniture and equipment of the County are depreciated using the straight-line method over the 
following estimated useful lives: 

Buildings 
Building Improvements 
Infrastructure 
Vehicles 
Office Equipment 
Computer Equipment 
Right-to-Use Lease Assets 

Assets Years 

40 
30 

25/35/45 
10 
10 
10 

Lease Tenn 

6. Since Internal Service Funds support the operations of governmental funds, they are consolidated with 
the governmental funds in the govemment-wide financial statements. The expenditures of governmental 
funds that create the revenues of internal service funds are eliminated to avoid "grossing up" the revenues 
and expenses of the County as a whole. 

7. The County does not maintain any restricted assets currently. 

8. The County purchases worker's compensation insurance through the Texas Association of Counties 
Workers Compensation Fund. 

9. Net Position and Fund Balances: 

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Net Position: 
Government-wide and proprietary fund net positions are divided into three components: 
• Net investment in capital assets --consist of the historical cost of capital assets less accumulated depreciation 

and less any debt that remains outstanding that was used to finance those assets plus deferred outflows 
of resources less deferred inflows of resources l'elated to those assets. 

• Restricted net position-consist of assets that are restricted by the County's creditors (for example, through 
debt covenants), by the state enabling legislation (through restrictions on shared revenues), by grantors 
(both federal and state), and by other contributors. 

• Unrestricted-all other net position is reported in this category. 
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Governmental Fund Balances: 
In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are classified as follows: 
• Non-spendable-Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in a non-spendable fonn or because 

they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 
• Restricted-Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of the County's state or federal 

laws, or externally imposed conditions by grantors or creditors. 
• Committed-Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal action by 

Commissioners' Court ordinance. 
• Assigned-Amounts that are designated by the County Judge for a particular purpose but are not spendable 

unti I a budget ordinance is passed or there is a majority vote approval ( for capital projects or debt service) 
by the Commissioners' Court. 

• Unassigned-All amounts not included in other spendable classifications. 

IO. Use of Restricted Resources: 

When an expenditure/expense is incurred that can be paid using either restricted or unrestricted resources 
(net position), the County's policy is to first apply the expenditure/expense toward restricted resources 
and then toward unrestricted resources. In governmental funds, the County's policy is to first apply the 
expenditure toward restricted fund balance and then to other, less-restrictive classifications-committed 
and then assigned fund balances before using unassigned fund balances. 
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II. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

A. EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND 
BALANCE SHEET AND THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITlON 

Exhibit C-2 provides the reconciliation between the fund balance for total governmental funds on the governmental 
fund balance sheet and the net position for governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of 
net position. One element of that reconciliation explains that capital assets are not financial resources and are therefore 
not reported in governmental funds. In addition, long-tenn liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and 
payable in the current period and are not reported as liabilities in the funds. The details of capital assets and long­
tenn debt at the beginning of the year were as follows: 

Golernmental Funds Only 

Capital Assets at the Beginning of the 
Year 

Land 
Buildings and Improvements 
Vehicles, Furniture and F.quipment 
In fias tructure 

Change in Net Position 

Long-term Liabilities at the 
Beginning of the Year 

Historical Cost 

$ 58,564 
45,593,244 
12,223,015 
2,833,070 

Notes or Right-to-Use Leases Payable 

Certificates of Obligation 
PFC Revenue Bonds Payable 
Unamortized Premiurn'Discount 
Accrued Interest 

Change in Net Position 

Net Adjustment to Net Position 
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Net Value at 
Accumulated the Beginning Change in Net 
Depreciation of the Year Position 

$ - $ 58,564 
34,660,091 
4,178,949 

584,330 

10,933,153 
8,044,066 
2,248,740 

Payable at the 
Beginning of 

the Year 

$ 

35,165,000 
700,000 
112,642 
135,547 

$ 39,481,934 

36,113,189 

$ 3,368,745 



B. EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES AND 
THE GOVERNMENT-WlDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

Exhibit C-4 provides reconciliation between the net changes in fund balance as shown on the governmental fund 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the changes in net position of governmental 
activities as reported on the government-wide statement of activities. One element of that reconciliation explains that 
current year capital outlays and debt principal payments are expenditures in the fund financial statements but should 
be shown as increases in capital assets and decreases in long-term debt in the government-wide statements. This 
adjustment affects both the net asset balance and the change in net position. 

The details of this adjustment are as follows: 

Gowrnmental Fund<! Only 

Current Year Capital Outlay 
Land 
Buildings & hnprovements 
Vehicles, Furniture & Equipment 
Infrastructure Assets 

Total Capital Outlay 

Debt Principal Payments 

Certificates of Obligation Principal 
Right-to-Use Lease Principal 
Revenue Bond Principal 

Total Principal Payments 

Total Adjustment to Net Position 

$ 

45 

Amount 

23,264 
559,845 

583,109 

240,000 

5,190,000 

5.430,000 

Adjustments To 
Changes in Net Adjushnents to 

Position Net Position 

583,109 583,109 

5,430,000 5,430,000 

$ 6,013,109 $ 6,013,109 



Another element of the reconciliation on Exhibits C-2 and C-4 are described as various other reclassifications and 
eliminations necessary to convert from the modified accrual basis of accounting to accrual basis of accounting. This 
adjustment is the result of several items. The details for this element are as follows: 

Adjustments to 
Change in Net Adjustments to 

Amount Position Net Position 
Adjustments to Rewnue and Unearned Rewnue 

llcginning of Year Unearned Tax Revenue $ 2,225,646 $ 2,225,646 
Property taxadjustmenls to convert from the modified 
accrual basis to the full accrual bas is of accounting $ 674,912 $ 674,912 674,912 
Other Revenue Adjustmi;;nts $ 960,920 960,920 960,920 
Prior Period Adjustment $ 

Reclassify Pr·oceeds of Bonds, Loans & Capital Leas es 
Certificate of Obligation & Ri;;venue 13ond Proceeds $ 
Discount (Premium) on Issuance of Bonds $ 
Matured Unpaid Revenue Bonds Prior Year $ 

Change in Matured Unpaid Revenue Bonds $ 
Right-to-Use Lease Proceeds fur Purchase of Equipment $ 

Reclassify Liabilities Incurred hut not Liquidated This Year 
None $ 

Reclassify Certain Ex.penditures to Full Accrual From 
Modified Accrual 

Adjust Interest fapense on Long Term Financing $ 27,644 27,644 27,644 
Other Adjustments $ 50,000 50,000 50,000 
Amortization of Premiumll>iscount on Bonds Issued $ 7,510 7,510 7,510 
Record Basis on Disposition of Capital Assets $ (28,076) (28,076) (28,076) 

Totals $ 1,692,910 $ 3,918,556 

III. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNT ABILITY 

A. BUDGETARY DATA 

The Commissioner's Court adopts an "appropriated budget" for the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds. The 
County is required to present the adopted and final amended budgeted revenues and expenditures for each of these 
funds. The County compares the final amended budget to actual revenues and expenditures. The General Fund Budget 
report appears in Exhibit E-1. 

The procedures listed below are followed in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the general-purpose financial 
statements: 

1. Prior to December 3 L, the County prepares a budget for the next succeeding fiscal year beginning January 
I . The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. 

2. A meeting of the Commissioners Court is then called for the purpose of adopting the proposed budget. 
At least ten days' public notice of the meeting must be given. 

46 



3. Prior to January I, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a resolution by the Commissioners 
Court. Once a budget is approved, it can only be amended at the function and fund level by approval of 
a majority of the members of the Commissioners Court. Amendments are presented to the 
Commissioners Court at its regular meetings. Each amendment must have Commissioners Court 
approval. As required by law, such amendments are made before the fact, are reflected in the official 
minutes of the Commissioners Court, and are not made after year end. Because the County has a policy 
of careful budgetary control, several amendments were necessary during the year. None of those were 
significant except additional costs for capital outlay. 

4. Each budget is controlled at the department level for applicable revenue and expenditure function/object 
level. Budgeted amounts are as amended by the Commissioners Court. All budget appropriations lapse 
at year end. A reconciliation of fund balances for both appropriated budget and non-appropriated budget 
special revenue funds is as follows: 

Appropriated Budget Funds 
Non-appropriated Budget Funds 

B. EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIA TlONS 

December 31, 20 22 
Fund Balance 

$ 7,306,337 

$ 7,306,337 

Expenditures did not exceed the budget appropriations during the current year in the General Fund. 
The budget is prepared on the cash basis of accounting. 

C. DEFICIT FUND EQUITY 
The County did not incur a deficit fund balance in any funds during the current fiscal year. 

IV. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS 

A. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
The carrying amount of the County's cash and temporary investments at the end of the fiscal year follows: 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS- BY ACCOUNT TYPE 12/31/2022 

l Cash Deposits in Bank $ 3,772,472 

2 Certificates of Deposit Maturity to 3 months -
3 Restricted and Custodial Cash Deposits in Bank 1,341,446 

TOT AL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 5,113,918 

CASH AND CASH EQillV ALENTS - BY FUND TYPE 

1 Cash and Investments - General Fund $ (4,160,734) 
2 Cash and Investments - M~jor Governmental 3,307,344 
3 Cash and Investments - Non-Major Governmental 4,625,860 
4 Cash and Investments - Enterprise 
5 Cash and Investments - Pension Trust Fund-GAP 99,370 
6 Cash and Investments - Custodial 1,268,518 
7 Cash and Investments - Liability Fund (26,442) 
8 Cash and Investments - Other 

TOT AL CASH AND CASH EQUIV ALEN TS $ 5,113,918 

47 



County Policies and Legal and Contractual Provisions Governint:: Deposits 

Custodial Credit Risk for Deposits: State law requires governmental entities to contract with financial 
institutions in which funds will be deposited to secure those deposits with insurance or pledged securities 
with a fair value equaling or exceeding the amount on deposit at the end of each business day. The pledged 
securities must be in the name of the governmental entity and held by the entity or its agent. The County's 
cash deposits subject to custodial credit risk at the date of the highest cash balance and year end were: 

CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK 

Name of Depository Banks: Vista Bank, Haskell, TX & First 
National Bank Anson, Anson, TX 

Total amount of FDIC Insurance (FDIC) 

Amount or Bonds, Securities P !edged, & Letters of Credit 

Total FDIC, Bond, Securities Pledged, & Letters of Credit 

Cash Deposits and Cash lnvcstnu;nts in Bank 

Excess or (Shortage) FDIC, Bond, Pledged Securities, & 
Letters ofCredit 

The County's cash deposits ,tere entirclyeuwrcd by FOIC Insurance, 

Bond, Securities pledged, & Letters of Credit by the Deinsitory Banks 

HIGHEST CASH 
BALANCE 

$ 847,166 

14,400,000 

$ 15,247,166 

$ 15,733,807 

$ (486,641) 

NO 

12/31/2022 

$ 876,767 

16,550,000 

$ 17,426,767 

$ 12,863,455 

$ 4,563,312 

YES 

Foreign Currency Risk: The County limits the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the 
fair value of an investment or a deposit by (state an appropriate policy, such as, limiting all deposits 
denominated in a foreign currency to less than 5% of all deposits.) 

Investments 

County Policies and Legal and Contractual Provisions Governing Investments 

Compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act 
The Public Funds Investment Act (Government Code Chapter 2256) contains specific provisions in the 
areas of investment practices, management reports, and establishment of appropriate policies. Among other 
things, it requires a governmental entity to adopt, implement, and publicize an investment pol icy. That policy 
must address the following areas: (1) safety of principal and liquidity, (2) portfolio diversification, (3) 
allowable investments, (4) acceptable risk levels, (5) expected rates ofretum, (6) maximum allowable stated 
maturity of portfolio investments, (7) maximum average dollar.weighted maturity allowed based on the 
stated maturity date for the portfolio, (8) investment staff quality and capabilities, (9) and bid solicitation 
preferences for certificates of deposit. 

Statutes authorize the entity to invest in (1) obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certain U.S. agencies, and the 
State of Texas and its agencies; (2) guaranteed or secured certificates of deposit issued by state and national 
banks domiciled in Texas; (3) obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities and other political subdivisions 
of any state having been rated as to investment quality not less than an "A"; (4) No load money market funds 
with a weighted average maturity of 90 days or less; (5) fully collateralized repurchase agreements; (6) 
commercial paper having a stated maturity of 270 days or less from the date of issuance and is not rated less 
than A• I or P• I by two nationally recognized credit rating agencies OR one nationally recognized credit 
agency and is fully secured by an irrevocable letter of credit; (7) secured corporate bonds rated not lower 
than "AA-" or the equivalent; (8) public funds investment pools; and (9) guaranteed investment contracts for 
bond proceeds investment only, with a defined termination date and secured by U.S. Government direct or 
agency obligations approved by the Texas Public Funds Investment Act in an amount equal to the bond 
proceeds. The Act also requires the entity to have independent auditors perform test procedures related to 
investment practices as provided by the Act. The County is in substantial compliance with the requirements 
of the Act and with local policies. 
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Additional policies and contractual provisions governing investments for the County are specified below: 

Credit Risk: To limit the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obi igations the County Jim its investments in (list investments covered by the County's credit risk policy, such 
as commercial paper, corporate bonds, mutual bond funds) to the top ( or top 2 or 3) ratings issued by 
nationally recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSROs ). As of the current fiscal year, the County's 
investments in (none) were not rated because credit quality disclosure are not required. 

Custodial Credit Risk for Investments: To limit the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty 
to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of investment or co llatera\ securities that 
are in possession of an outside party the County requires counterparties to register the securities in the name 
of the County and hand them over to the County or its designated agent. This includes securities in securities 
lending transactions. All of the securities are in the County's name and held by the County or its agent. 

Concentration of Credit Risk: To limit the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's 
investment in a single issuer, the County limits investments to less than 5% of its total investments. The 
County further limits investments in a single issuer when they would cause investment risks to be 
significantly greater in the governmental and business-type activities, individual major funds, aggregate non­
major funds and fiduciary fund types than they are in the primary government. Usually, this limitation is 
20%. 

Interest Rate Risk: To limit the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of 
investments, the County requires at least half of the investment portfolio to have maturities of less than one 
year on a weighted average maturity basis. 

Foreign Currency Risk for Investments: The County limits the risk that changes in exchange rates will 
adversely affect the fair value of an investment by avoiding all investments denominated in a foreign 
currency. 

The County categorizes its fair value measurements with the fair vaiue hierarchy established by generally 
accepted accounting principles. the hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value 
of the asset. Level I inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are 
significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. Investments that are 
measured at fair value using the net asset value per share (or its equivalent) as a practical expedient are not 
classified in the fair value hierarchy below. fn instances where inputs used to measure fair value fall into 
different levels in the above fair value hierarchy, fair value measurements in their entirety are categorized 
based on the lowest \eve I input that is significant to the valuation. The County's assessment of the significance 
of particular inputs to these fair value measurements requires judgment and considers factors specific to each 
asset or liability. 
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As of the end of the current fiscal year, the County had $10,776,685 in investments subject to fair value 
measurement. The County also has $3,149,988 investments measured at the Net Asset Value (NA V) per Share 
(or its equivalent). As of the end of the current fiscal year, the County had the following investments: 

Investments 

Investments measured at amortized cost -
lnvesnnent pools: 

Investments measured at net asset value (NA V)­

lnve,~nent pools: 

US Hank Money Market Account-Managed 
Investment, measured by foir vah!e level -

U, S. Government Agency Securities: 

federal Home Loan Bank 
fannie Mac 

US Trea.1.ury Hands 

Money Market Mutu.ral }'unds 

Certificates of Depos it 

Commcrcia.J Pa.per 

Rfstri.cte-d Inve~tments-

Custooial Accounts-Certi&ate, of Vcposil 

Tolal lnvestme nts 

B. PROPERTY TAXES 

Quoted 
Prices in 
Active Signilitant 

Mnrkets fur Other Signilicunt 
December 31, [denlical Observuble Unobservable 

2022 Assets [nputs [nputs 
Value (Level I) (Level 2) (Level 3) 

s - $ - s - $ 

3,149,987 

7,563,998 7,563,998 

62,700 62,700 

$ \0776 685 $ $ 7626698 $ 

Weighted 
Percent of Average 

Tol•I Maturity 
Inv es tnu: n ts (Days) Credit Risk 

0.00% AAAm• 

29.23% AAAm• 

000% AA+toAa~ 

0.00% AAAm' 
0.()()% AAAm' 
0.1)0% Nol rated 

70.19% 36.5 HFJB+ to AA-
0.00% • B!:lB+toAA· 
0.00% • BBB+ to AA· 
0.58% 365 HHH+ to AA-
0.00% • Hf!H+ to AA· 

JOO.Oil% 

Property taxes are levied by October l on the assessed value listed as of the prior January I for all real and business 
personal property located in the County in confonnity with Subtitle E, Texas Property Tax Code. Taxes are due on 
receipt of the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before February I of the year following the year in which imposed. 
On January 31 of each year, a tax lien attaches to property to secure the payment of all taxes, penalties, and interest 
ultimately imposed. Property tax revenues are considered available (1) when they become due or past due and 
receivable within the current period and (2) when they are expected to be co11ected during a 60-day period after the 
close of the county fiscal year. 

C. DELINQUENT TAXES RECEIVABLE 

Delinquent taxes are prorated between maintenance and debt service based on rates adopted for the year of the levy 
of that taxing unit. Delinquent property taxes are cancelled and removed from the roll for real property assessments 
that are more than 20 years old and personal property assessments that are more than IO years old. 

50 



D. INTER-FUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS 

Inter-fund balances as of December 31, 2022, consisted of the following amounts: 

Due to General Fund From: 

Other Major Govern~ntal Funds 
Non-major Governmental Funds 

Non-major Proprietary Fund 

All Others 

Total Due to General Fund From Other Funds 

Due to Other Major Gmernmental Fund. From: 
General Fund 

Non-major Governmental Funds 

Non-major Proprietary Fund 
All Others 

Total Due to Other Major Gowrnmental Funds 

Due to Non-major Governmental Fund'! From: 

General Fund 
Other Major Governmental Funds 
Non-major Proprietary Fund 

AU Others 

Total Due to Non-major Gowrnmental Funds 

Due to Non-major Proprietary Fund From: 
General Fund 

Other Major Governmental Funds 

Non-major Governmental Funds 
All Others 

Total due to Non-major Proprietary Fund 

Due to All Other Funds From: 

General Fund 
Other Major Governmental Funds 
Non-major (i)vemmental Funds 

Non-major Proprietary Fund 

Total Due to All Other Funds 

$ 

1,213,496 

$ 1,213,496 

$ 

$ 

$ 341,672 

$ 341,672 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

The balance of $1,213,496 due to the general fund resulted from current and prior year loans to special revenue 
funds that will be liquidated in three years, thus a portion of the balance is not scheduled to be collected in the 
subsequent year 2023. 
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Inter-fund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2022, were as follows: 

Transfers to General Fund Fl'Om: 

Other Major Governmental Funds 

Non-major Governmental Funds 

Non-major Proprietary Fund 

All Others 

Total Transferred to General Fund 

Transfers to Other Major Gowrnmental Fundoi From: 

General Fund 

Non-major Govcmmcntal Funds 

Non-major Proprietary Fund 

All Others 

Total Transferred to Other Major Cowrnmental Fund 
Transfers to Non-major Gowrnmental Funds From: 

General Fund 

Other Non-Major Governmental Funds 

Non-major Proprietary Fund 

AU Others 

Total Transferred to Non-major Go,ernmental Fund'! 

Transferred to Non-major Proprietary Fund From: 

General Fund 

Other Major Governmental Funds 

Non-major Governmental Funds 

All Others 

Total Transferred to Internal Senice Fund'l 

Transferred to All Other Fund'l From: 

General Fund 

Other Major Governmental Funds 

Non-major Governmental Funds 

Non-major Proprietary Fund 

Total Transferred to All Other Funds 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Inter-fund transfers for the current year end consisted of the following individual amounts: 

848,274 

848,274 

3,771,908 

3,771,908 

572,657 

183,878 

14,493 

771,028 

Transfers are used to (I) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the fund 
that statute or budget requires to expend them and to cover operating deficits in funds such as the Juvenile 
Probation. The County did make operating transfers to the Road & Bridge funds, the Juvenile Probation funds, 
and the PFC Funds during the current year. 

During the current year ended December 31, 2022, the County did not make a one-time transfer of funds from the 
general fund to the debt service fund to subsidize, in part, the County's obligation of interest and sinking fund 
requirements. 
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E. DISAGGREGATION OF RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 

Receivables as of December 31, 2022, were as follows: 

Due From 

Other Due From 

Property l·axes Governments Other Fund'! 

Go\ernmental Acthities: 

General Fund $ 3,012,597 $ 453,362 $ 1,213,496 

Other Major C,ovemmcn tal Funds 

Non-major Governmental Funds 1,053,481 487,632 341,672 

Other Governmental Funds 

Total Governmental Acthities $ 4,066,078 $ 940,994 $ 1,555,168 

Amounts not scheduled for collection during 
the s uh sequent year $ - $ - $ -
Business-type Acthities: 

Non-major Proprietary Fund $ $ - $ 

Other Funds 

Total Business-type Actilities $ - $ - $ 

Payables as of December 31, 2022, were as follows: 

Loans, 

Leasn and 
Bonlli 

Payable- Advances Due To 
Accounts Current From Other Other 

Other Total Receiwbles 

$ 13,868 $ 4,693,323 

2,672 1,885,457 

$ 16,540 $ 6,578,780 

$ - $ 

$ - $ 

$ $ 

Due To Accrued 
Other lnlereu Total 

Payable Year Funds Funds C.mernmenu Payable Payables 

C.o.ernmental Acti'1ties; 

c,.,nernl Fund $ 35,106 $ $ 328,803 $ 12,870 $ $ $ 376,779 

Other Major Governmental FLmds 

Non-major Governmental Funds 50,726 1,213,496 37,262 J,JOl,484 
Other Governmental Funds 

Total Go.ernmcntal Type Acthrnes $ 85,832 $ $1,542,299 $ 12,870 $ 37,262 $ $ 1,678,263 
Amounts not scheduled for payment 

during the s uhi equenl year $ $ $ $ $ - $ $ 
Business-Type Aclivitie~: 

Non-major Proprietary Fund $ $ $ $ $ - $ - $ 
Non-major EnleTri~e Funds 

Total Business-Type Acli1'i lies $ $ $ $ $ - $ - $ 
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F. CAPITAL ASSET ACTIVITY 

Capital asset activity for the County for the year ended December 31, 2022, was as follows: 

Primary Go,ernment 

Beginning Balance Additions Retirements Ending Balance 

C'.overnmental Activities: 

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated: 

Land $ 58,564 $ - $ - $ 58,564 

Capital Assets Being Depreciated: 

Buildings and Improvements 45,593,244 23,264 45,616,508 

Vehicles, Furniture, and F.quipment 12,223,015 609,844 219,664 12,613,195 

Infrastructure Assets 2,833,070 2,833,070 

Totals at His tori c Cos I $ 60,707,893 $ 633,108 $ 219,664 $ 61,121,337 

Less AccumulatedDepreciation for: 

Iluildings and Impmvemenls $ 10,933,153 $ 1,207,854 $ - $ 12,141,007 

Vehicles, Furniture, and Equipment 8,044,066 609,310 197,740 8,455,636 

Infras tructurc Assets 2,248;740 72.915 2321.655 

Total Accumulated Del.!!:eciation $ 21,225,959 $ 1,890,079 $ 197,740 $ 22,918,298 

Governmental Acthities Ca(!!tal Assets, Net $ 39,481,934 $ {1,256,97Q $ 2 1,924 $ 38,203,039 

Additions and Retirements include a prior period adjustment of $50,000 each for old equipment disposed. 
Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as folloffll: 

General Government 

Judicial 

Executive 

Elections 

Financial Administration 

Other General Government Functions 

Public Safety 

Co rrectiu ns 

Other Public Safety 

Highways and Streets 

Health and Welfare 

Total Depreciation Eir.pense 

LONG-TERM LEASE ASSETS 
Intangible Right-to-Use Assets 

$ 

5,618 

58,501 

1,449,537 

1,568 

374,855 

$ 1,890,079 

In Fiscal Year 2022, the County implemented the guidance in GASBS No. 87, Leases, and recognized the value of 
copiers, postage machines, and etc. leased under long-term contracts. No leases were identified that met the GASB 
8 7 criteria. 

G. SHORT-TERM DEBT PAYABLE 
The County accounts for short-term debts for unpaid matured bonds and interest through a Debt Service Fund, Short­
term debts include notes made in accordance with the provisions of the Local Government code and matured unpaid 
principal and interest. 
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H. BONDS, LONG-TERM NOTES PAYABLE, FINANCED PURCHASE OBLIGATIONS, AND OTHER 
LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

Bonded indebtedness, long-term notes payable, and other long-term obligations of the County are reflected in the 
General Long-Tenn Debt Account Group. Current requirements for principal and interest expenditures are accounted 
for in the appropriate funds and departments based on the use of the original debt proceeds. ln connection with the 
Jones County Public Facility Corporation, a blended component unit of the County issued Revenue Bonds Series 2009 
on December 23, 2009, in the face amount of$7,880,000 at an effective rate of 6.2%. The Revenue Bonds Series 2009 
(the "Bonds") were issued to provide funds to (i) finance a project that consists of the development, design, 
construction and equipping of a 96 bed secure detention center on land in Jones County, (the land, improvements and 
its operations are collectively referred to as the "Project'), (ii) to establish a reserve fund for the payment of the Bonds; 
(iii) to pay interest on the Bonds for a period of approximately 24 months from the date of issuance; (iv) to pay certain 
operating expenses during construction and for up to one year following completion of construction; and (v) to pay 
costs of issuing the Series 2009 Bonds. The land on which the detention center was built was subject to a ground lease 
between the County and the PFC. 

In relation to the Project, 1be County has acquired all assets of the PFC and cancelled the lease with the PFC after 
issuing $6,900,000 in Certificates of Obligation and $930,000 in Revenue Bonds on February 22, 2012. The Revenue 
Bond payments are to be paid by the County only upon receipt of rental payments received from third party entities 
that pay the County to house their inmates in the new detention facility. The amount of the payments required under 
the agreement is 50% of all lease revenue received up to the debt service schedule in the agreement. 

The following is a summary of the County's long-term debt fur tile year ended December 31, 1022: 

Beginning Ending Due Within 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year 

Gove mme ntal Activities: 

Bonds imd Notes Payable: 

General Obligation Bond~ $ 30,760,000 $ . $ 5,190,000 25,570,000 $ 30,000 
Premium on Bond Issuance l 12,643 7,511 105,132 
Maintenance Tax Notes 5,105,000 240,000 4,865,000 250,000 
Financed Purchase ObliS:!tions 

Total Bonds and Notes Payable $ 35,977,643 $ - $ 5,437,511 $30,540,132 $ 280,000 

Other Liabilities: 

Accretion Interest $ - $ - $ - $ 

Accrued Interest Pa~able 135,547 122,923 135,547 122,923 122,923 
Total Other Liabilities $ 135,547 $ 122,923 $ 135,547 $ 122,923 $ 122,923 
Total Governmental Activities Long-Term 

Liabilities $36,113,190 $ 122,923 $ 5,573,058 $30,663,055 $ 402,923 

The County currently has debt outstanding that was issued ftom the Jones County PFC and the Texas Midwest Public 
Facilities Corporation (PFC). The agreement in connection with this Debt was for the Federal Marshall Service or 
other counties to lease prison beds in return for amounts that are to be used for revenue bond principal and interest 
payments. As of December 31, 2022, prison beds have been leased by the Federal Marshall Service or other counties 
and are also being funded through the Federal ICE system. 2009 Series Bonds outstanding with the Texas Midwest 
PFC were retired in the amount of $2,725,000 in March 2021 through a Reverse Dutch Auction with a payment of 
$1,498,473. The bonds were then exchanged dollar for dollar with newly issued taxable bonds in June of2021 for 
$32,745,000 with all bonds maturing on December 1, 2030, with an interest rate of2.0% that becomes variable when 
the outstanding bonds is less than $25,000,000. In May and November of2022 $2,570,000 and $2,590,000 in newly 
issued bonds were retired with a Reverse Dutch Auction payments of $1,592,760 and $1,605,800. Interest was paid 
in May, June, and December of2022 of$299,843 and $273,605. In prior years, the County has not defeased certain 
general obligation bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt 
service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, there are no trust account assets and liabilities for the dcfeased 
bonds that are not included in the County's financial statements. On December 31, 2022, $0 of bonds considered 
defeased are still outstanding. 
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Debt service requirements for certificates of obligation, bonds, and capital leases payable are as follows: 

Debt Payable - Governmental Activities: 

Description 

General Obligation Bonds Payahle: 
PFC REVEN!JE BONDS 2012SERJES 

2009 TX MIDWEST PFC BONDS 

2021 'l'X MIDWEST PFC TAXABLE BONDS 

NIA 

NIA 

NIA 

NIA 

Total ~ncnil Obligation Bonds 

Premium on Bond lss uante 
Maintenance Tax Notes Payable: 

CliRT!FlCATc!l OF OBUGATJON SERJES 2012 

N/A 

Total Mainte nancc Tax Note~ 
Capilal u as es Payable: 

NO FINANCED PURCIJASl.i OBLIGATIONS PA YABW 

N/A 

Total Capital Leases 

Total Debt Payable - Gnvemmenlal Activities 

Interest Original 
Rate Issue 

6.20-6.20% $ 7,880,000 s 
7.25-9.00% $35,470,000 
2.m-2.ooo;. $32,745,000 
o.m.o.ooo;. $ 

0.00-0.00% $ 

0 00-0.00% $ 
0.00-0.00% $ 

$ 

3-15-5.50% $ 6,900,000 $ 

$ 

0.(Xl-0 00% $ - $ 

$ 

s 
$ 

Interesl Beginning 
Current Balance 

Year 1/112022 Additions Reductions 

43,675 $ 700,000 $ $ 30,000 

573,348 30,060,000 5,160,000 

617,023 $ 30,760,000 $ $ 5,190,000 

$ 112,643 $ . $ 7,511 

240,450 $ 5,\05,000 $ $ 240,000 

240450 $ 5 105 000 $ $ 240000 

- $ s $ 

$ s $ . 
857,473 $ ]5,977,64:l $ $ 5,437,511 

The following table swnrnarizes the annual debt service requiremenls of lhe Districts C',ovemmental Activities long-term debt December 31, 2022: 

Ending 
Balance 

12/31/2022 

$ 670,000 

24,900,000 

$25,570,000 

$ J05J33 

$ 4,865,000 

$ 4,865,000 

$ 

$ 

s 30,540,133 

General Ohl,gation Bonds M a,ntenanre T~x Notc8 Capital I ,c ascs Totals 
Principal Interest 

2023 $ 30,00C.l $ 

2024 ]0,000 

2025 35,000 

2026 40,000 

2027 40,000 

2028-2032 25,140,000 

2033-2037 255,000 

2038-2042 
2043-2047 
204&.2052 

Totals s 25,570,000 $ 

LONG-TERM LEASE OBLIGATIONS 
Intangible Right-to-Use Lease Liabilities 

788,825 

786,975 
785,125 

71!2,938 

780,438 

2,306,47~ 

36,563 

6,267,340 

Principal 

s 250,000 s 
260,000 

275,000 

290,000 

305,000 

1,760,()(Xl 

1,725,000 

s 4,865,000 $ 

Interest Principal Jnte rest l'rincipal lntc rest 
230,i\50 s - $ $ 280,000 $ 1,019,675 

218,350 290,000 1,005,325 

205,350 ]10,000 990,475 

191,600 330,000 'J74,538 

177,100 345,000 9S7,538 

643,350 26,900,000 2,949,828 

198,225 1,980,000 234,788 

1,864,825 $ $ $ 30,435,000 $ R,112,1(.S 

In FY 2022, the County implemented the guidance ofGASB Statement No. 87, Leases, for accounting and reporting 
leases that had previously been reported as operating leases, The County did not maintain any leases that met the 
criteria for the newly adopted GASB 87 for leases. 

I. COMMITMENTS UNDER SHORT-TERM LEASES 

Commitments under short-tenn lease agreements for equipment are reported as rental expenditures in appropriate 
functional categories depending on the related usage of the equipment. Those leases provide for month-to-month or 
other short-tenn rental obligations of 12 months or less. 

J. ACCUMULATED UNPAID VACATION AND SICK LEA VE BENEFITS 
The County maintains a vacation and sick leave policy for its full-time staff. The policy provides that full time 
employees earn 10 days' vacation per year_ Vacation benefits can be accumulated up to 10 days_ Employees also 
earn sick leave time of 12 days per year accumulated up to a maximum of30 days. No unused sick leave benefits are 
paid upon termination of employment for any reason. As such, no liability is maintained for accumulated vacation of 
sick leave benefits. 
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K. RETIREMENT PLAN -TEXAS COUNTY DISTRICT RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Plan Description. Jones County provides pension, disability, and death benefits for all of its full-time employees 
through a statewide, agent multiple-employer, public-employee retirement system through the Texas County District 
Retirement System (the "TCDRS"). The system serves 830 actively participating counties and districts throughout 
Texas. Each employer has its own defined benefit plan that functions similarly to a cash balance plan. The assets of 
the plans are pooled for investment purposes, but each employer's plan assets may be used only for the payment of 
benefits to the members of that employer's plan. ln accordance with Texas law, it is intended that the pension plan be 
construed and administered in a manner that the retirement system will be considered qualified under Section 401(a) 
of the Internal Revenue Code. All employees (except temporary staff) of a participating employer must be enrolled in 
the plan. The TCDRS issues a comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) on a calendar year basis. The CAFR is 
available upon written request from the TCDRS Board of Trustees at P. 0. Box 2034, Austin, Texas 78768-2034. 

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the County, within the options available in the Texas state 
statutes governing TCDRS (TCDRS Act). Members can retire at ages 60 and above with 8 or more years of service 
or with 30 years regardless of age, or when the sum of their age and years of service equals 75 or more. A member is 
vested after 8 years but must leave his accumulated contributions in the plan to receive any employer-financed benefit. 
Members who withdraw their personal contributions in a lump-sum are not entitled to any amounts contributed by 
their employer. 

Benefit amounts are determined by the sum of the employee's contributions to the plan, with interest, and employer 
financed monetary credits. The level of these monetary credits is adopted by the governing body of the County within 
the actuarial constraints imposed by the TCDRS Act so that the resulting benefits can be expected to be adequately 
financed by the employer's commitment to contribute. At retirement, death, or disability, the benefit is calculated by 
converting the sum of the employee's accumulated contributions and the employer-financed monetary credits to a 
monthly annuity using annuity purchase rates prescribed by the TCDRS Act. 

Contributions. The County has elected the annually determined contribution rate (ADCR) plan provisions if the 
TCDRS Act. The plan is funded by monthly contributions from both employee members and the employer based on 
the covered payroll of employee members. Under the TCDRS Act, the contribution rate of the employer is actuarially 
determined annually. 

Employees of Jones County were required to contribute 7.0% of their annual gross earnings during the current fiscal 
year. The contribution rates for the County were 14.15% and 14.45% in calendar years 2021 and 2022, respectively. 
The County's contributions to TC DRS for the year ended December 31, 2022, were $654,698 and were equal to the 
required contributions. 

Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7 .60%. There was a change in the 
discount rate since the previous year from 7.60%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate 
assumed that contributions from plan members and those or the contributing employers are made at the statutorily 
required rates. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to 
make all future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate ofreturn on pension 
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

The Jong-term rate ofretum on pension plan investments is 7.60%. The long-term expected rate ofreturn is determined 
by adding expected inflation to expected long-term real returns and reflecting expected volatility and correlation. The 
capital market assumptions and information shown below are provided by TCDRS' investment consultant, Cliffwater 
LLC. The numbers shown below are based on January 2022 in formation for a 10-year time horizon. 

Note that the valuation assumption for long-term expected return is re-assessed at a minimum of every four years and 
is set based on a 10-year time horizon; the most recent analysis was performed in 2022. 
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Targe1 Geometric Real 

Asset Ch1ss Benchmark Allocation<1l Rate of Return12l 

U.S. Equities Dow Jones U.S. Total Stock Market lnde)( 11.50% 3.80% 

Global Equities MSCI World (net) Index 2.50% 4.10% 

lnl'I Equities - Developed Markets MSCI World Ex USA (net) Index 5.00% 3.80% 

lnt'I Equities - Emerging Marl(ets MSCI Emerging Martets (net) Index 6.00% 4.30% 

Investment-Grade Bonds Bloomberg Barclays U.S. Aggregate Bond Index 3.00% -0.85% 

Strategic Credit FTSE High-Yield Cash-Pay Capped Index 9.00% 1.77% 

Direct Lending S&PILSTA leveraged loan Index 16.00% 6.25% 

Distressed Debt Cambridge Associates Distressed Securities lndex(3l 4.00% 4.50% 

REITEqumes 67% FTSE NAREIT All Equity REITs Index+ 33% S&P 2.00% 3.10% 
Glot>al REIT (nel) Index 

Master Limited Partnerships Alerian MLP Index 2.00% 3.85% 

Private Rea I Estate Partnerships Cambridge Associates Real Estate lndex'41 6.00% 5.10% 

Private Equity Cambridge Associates Global Private Equity & Venture 25.00% 6.80% 
Capital lndex<5I 

Hedge Funds Hedge Fund Research, Inc. (HFRI) Fund of Funds 
Composite Index 6.00% 1.55% 

Cash Equivalents 90-Day U.S. Treasury 2.00% -1.05% 

t•J Target asset allocation adopted at the March 2022 TCDRS Board meeting. 
r2J Geometric real rates of return equal the expected retum for the asset class minus the assumed inflation rate of 2. 6%, 

per Cliffwater's 2022 capital market assumptions. 
m Includes vintage years 2005-present of Quarter Pooled Horizon IRRs. 
fJJ Includes vintage years 2007-present of Quarter Pooled Horizon IRRs. 
<5J Includes vintage years 2006-present of Quarter Pooled Horizon IRRs. 
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Changes i11 the Net Pension Liability. As of December 31, 2022, the County reported a net pension liability (asset) 
of $(1, 152,048). The changes in net pension liability (asset) were as follows: 

Increase (Decrease) 

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension 

Liability Net Position Liability 

(a) (b) {a)- (b) 

Balance at 12/31/20 $ 19,227,836 $ 17,752,974 $ 1,474,862 

Changes for the year: 

Service cost 549,282 549,282 

Interest 1,462,665 1,462,665 

Change in benefit terms - -
Diff between expected/actual expe ri e nee 106,393 106,393 

Changes of assumptions (62,968) (62,968) 

Contributions - employer 552,791 (552,791) 

Contributions - employee 273,465 (273,465) 

Net investment income 3,869,961 {3,869,961) 

Benefit payments, including refunds of -
employee contributions (1,082,869) (1,082,869) -

Administrative expenses (11,552} 11,552 

Other charges (2,381) 2,381 

Net changes 972,504 3,599,414 (2,626,910) 

Balance at 12/31/21 $ 20,200,340 s 21,352,388 $ (1,152,048) 

(I) Reflects the change in the liability due to the time value of money. TCDRS does not charge fees or interest. 
(2) No plan changes valued. 
(3) Relates to allocation of system-wide items. 

The net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 202 I, and the total pension liability used to calculate the 
net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date and for the year then ended. 

There were no changes of assumptions or other inputs that affected measurement of the total pension liability during 
the measurement period. 

There were no changes of benefit tenn s that affected measurement of the total pension liability during the measurement 
period. Discount Rate Sem,itivity A11alysi.~. The following shows the net pension liability calculated using the discount 
rate of 7.60%, as well as what the County's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate 
that is l percentage point lower (6.60%) or 1 percentage point higher (8.60%) than the current rate. 

Total pension liability 

Fiduciary net position 

Net pension liability/ (asset) 

1% 
Decrease 

6.60% 

$22,750,540 

21,352,387 

$1 ,398,153 
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Current 
Discount Rate 

7.60% 

$20,200,340 

21,352,387 

($1,152,048) 

1% 
Increase 

8.60% 

$18,052,176 

21,352,387 

($3,300,211) 



Pe11sion Expense and Deferred Outflows of Re.fources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions. 

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the County recognized pension expense reduction of ($4,022,515). 

As of December 31, 2022, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 

J ' Deferred Deferred 

Outflows of Inflows of 

Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and actual economic 

experience ( net of current year amortization) $ 53,196 $ 5,234 

Changes in actuarial assumptions $ 342,907 $ 31,484 

Differences between projected and actual investment 

earnings (net of current year amortization) $ - $ 2,438,478 

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 654,698 

Total $ 1,050,801 $ 2,475,196 

For the year ending December 31, 2023, $654,698 is reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pension 
resulting from contributions subsequent to the measurement date and will be recognized as a reduction of the net 
pension liability. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pension will be 
recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 

2023 
I 

• $ (167,471) 

2024 I 
. . 

I $ (823,945) 

2025 I $ (581,510) 

2026 I ! I $ (506,167) 

2027 I $ -
Thereafter I $ -
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L. DEFERRED INFLOWS·- UNAVAILABLE REVENUE AND UNEARNED STATE AND FEDERAL 

REVENUE (GOVERNMENTAL FUND STATEMENTS) 

Deferred Inflows - Unavailable revenue at year-end consisted of the following: 

Major 
Governmental Spetial Debt 

General Fund Fund Rcwnue Funds Service Fund Total 

Unavailable Net Property Tax Revenue $ 2,867,863 $ - $ 650,988 $ 351,495 $ 3,870,346 

Total Unawilable Rewnue $ 2,867,863 $ - $ 650,988 $ 351,495 $ 3,870,346 

Unearned State and Federal revenue at year-end consisted of the following: 

Major 
Governmental Special Debt 

General Fund Fund Re,enue Fund'i Service Fund Total 

Unearned State and Federal Revenue $ - $ 3,355,660 $ - $ - $ 3,355,660 

Total Unawilable Rnenue $ - $ 3,355,660 $ - $ - $ 3,355,660 

M. REVENUE FROM LOCAL, INTERMEDIATE, AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL SOURCES 

During the current year, revenues from local and intermediate sources consisted of the following: 

Major Special Debt 
General Governmental Revenue Senice 

DESCRIPTION Fund Funm Funds Fund Total 

Property Taxes $ 4,053,797 $ - $ 912,760 $ 440,250 $ 5,406,807 
Penalty & Interest on Taxes 94,303 5,017 99,320 
Other Taxes 11,406 11,4-06 
Licenses and Permits 373,752 373,752 
Intergovernmental Revenue 86,903 37,911,986 2,138,339 40,137,228 
Charges for Services 729,385 302,388 1,031,773 
Fines 63,130 113,385 176,515 
Investment Income 73,459 34,145 22,821 4,773 135,198 
Facility Revenue 1,350,946 1,350,946 
Other 303,506 29,4-07 332,913 

TOTAL $ 5,415,889 $ 37,946,131 $ 5,243,798 $ 450,040 $ 49,055,858 

N. LITlGATION 

The County is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors 
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The County is not aware of any pending legal actions 
including unasserted claims that would require a material settlement as of June 12, 2023. 

0. CONSTRUCTION AND OTHER SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

The County, as of December 31, 2022, has not incurred or made any commitments and/or contingencies in connection 
with construction or other areas of significance. 
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P. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

In preparing the basic financial statements, County administration has evaluated events and transactions for potential 
recognition or disclosure through June 12, 2023, the date this Annual Financial Report was issued. No material 
subsequent events had occurred in the period of December 31, 2022, through that date. 

Q. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The County did not incur any material reportable related party transactions or balances as of and during the year ended 
December 31, 2022. 

R. FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION ADJUSTMENT 
The County did make a prior period fund balance adjustment to inter fund loan balances in the general fund during 
the year ended December 3 L, 2022, for $15,950. 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
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JONESCOUNTY,TEXAS 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

Data 
Control Budgeted Amounts 
Codes 

Original 

RECEIPTS: 
Taxes: 

5110 Property Taxes $ 4,139,454 
5180 Other Taxes 9,000 
5190 Penalty and Interest on Taxes 75,000 
5300 Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants 121,700 
5400 Charges for Services 640,000 
5510 Fines 50,000 
5610 Investment Earnings 24,000 
5700 Other Revenue 161,000 

5020 Total Receipts 5,220,154 

DISBURSEMENTS: 
Current: 

0100 General Government 1,201,776 
0120 Judicial 1,089,607 
0130 Executive 134,857 
0140 Elections 75,710 
0150 Financial Administration 182,155 
0190 Other General Government Functions 334,490 
0200 Public Safety 2,061,462 
0230 Corrections 11,000 
0290 Other Public Safety 245,301 
0400 Health and Welfare 254,699 

6030 Total Disbursements 5,591,057 

1100 Excess (Deficiency) of Receipts Over (Under) 
Disbursements 

(370,903} 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES); 
7915 Transfers In 140,970 
891 l Transfers Out (240,848) 

7080 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (99,878) 

1200 Net Change in Cash Balance (470,781) 

O 100 Cash Balance - January 1 (Beginning) 4,138,955 

1300 Prior Period Adjustment 

3000 Cash Balance - December 31 (Ending) $ 3,668,174 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Final 

$ 4,139,454 
9,000 

75,000 
121,700 
666,765 
50,000 
24,000 

161,000 

5,246,919 

1,200,919 
1,092,674 

134,857 
74,175 

193,382 
358,481 

1,986,062 
11,000 

247,462 
268,960 

5,567,972 

(321,053) 

140,970 
(240,848) 

(99,878) 

(420,931) 

4,138,955 

$ 3,718,024 

Actual 
Amounts 

(CASH BASIS) 

$ 4,053,797 
11,406 
94,303 
86,903 

729,385 
63,130 
73,459 

303,506 

5,415,889 

1,064,500 
948,081 
131,584 
53,410 

190,664 
349,263 

1,938,798 
8,093 

247,462 
255,660 

5,187,515 

228,374 

848,274 
(556,707) 

291,567 

519,941 

2,670,079 

15,950 

$ 3,205,970 

EXHIBIT F-1 

Variance With 
Final Budget 
Positive or 
(Negative) 

$ (85,657) 
2,406 

19,303 
(34,797) 

62,620 
l3, 130 
49,459 

142,506 

168,970 

136,419 
144,593 

3,273 
20,765 
2,718 
9,218 

47,264 
2,907 

13,300 

380,457 

549,427 

707,304 
(315,859) 

391,445 

940,872 

(1,468,876) 

15,950 

$ (512,054) 



JONES COUNTY, TEXAS 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

TEXAS COUNTY & DISTRICT RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

FY 2022 FY 2021 FY2020 
Plan Year 2021 Plan Year 2020 Plan Year 2019 

A. Total Pension Liability 

Service Cost $ 549,282 $ 487,001 $ 432,l17 

Interest ( on the Total Pension Liability) 1,462,665 1,405,263 1,348,751 

Changes of Benefit Terms 

Difference between Expected and Actual Experienc.: 106,393 (15,704) (84,117) 

Changes of Assumptions (62,968) 1,028,719 

Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Employee Contributions (1,082,869) (1,058,137) (1,049,924) 

Net Change in Total Pension Liability $ 972,503 $ 1,847,142 $ 646,827 

Total Pension Liability - Beginning 19,227,836 17,380,694 16,733,868 

Total Pension Liability - Ending $ 20,200,339 $ 19,227,836 $ 17,380,695 

8, Total Fiduciary Net Position 

Contributions - Employer $ 552,791 $ 529,982 $ 469,945 

Contributions • Employee 273,465 241,579 226,664 

Net Investment Income 3,869,961 1,690,438 2,362,226 

Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Employee Contributions (1,082,869) (1,058,137) (1,049,924) 

Administrative Expense (11,552) (12,990) (12,474) 

Other (2,381) (6,858) (9,816) 

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position $ 3,599,415 $ 1,384,014 $ , 1,986,621 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 17,752,974 16,368,960 14,382,338 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending $ 21,352,389 $ 17,752,974 $ 16,368,959 

C. Net Pension Liability (Asset) $ (1,152,050) $ 1,474,862 $ 1,0 I 1,736 

D. Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of Total Pension 105.70% 92.33% 94.18% 
Liability 

E. Covered Payroll $ 3,906,640 $ 3,451,126 $ 3,238,059 

F, Net Pension Liability (Asset) as a Percentage of Covered Payroll (29.49%) 42.74% 31.25% 

Note: GASB Codification. Vol. 2, P20.l 46 requires that the data in this schedule be prs:~ented for the time period covered by the 
measurement date rather than the governmental entity's current fiscal year. 

As required by GASB 68, this schedule will be built prospectively as the information becomes available until IO years of information is 
presented. 
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EXHIBITF-2 

FY 2019 FY 2018 FY 2017 FY 2016 FY 2015 
Plan Year 2018 Plan Year 2017 Plan Year 2016 Plan Year 2015 Plan Year 2014 

$ 475,527 $ 488,660 $ 450,438 $ 423,041 $ 407,102 

1,310,158 1,293,084 1,224,946 1,189,140 1,129,085 

(81,516) 

(225,481) (612,517) (103,963) (299,393) 48,325 

83,291 39,999 173,892 

( 1,03 l, 119) (1,026,184) (970,947) (893,081) (899,190) 

$ 529,085 $ 226,334 $ 640,473 $ 512,083 $ 685,322 

16,204,783 15,978,448 15,337,975 14,865,892 14,180,570 

$ 16,733,868 $ 16,204,782 $ 15,978,448 $ 15,377,975 $ 14,865,892 

$ 488,009 $ 527,704 $ 512,991 $ 471,943 $ 449,846 

217,974 225,674 221,664 203,154 190,844 

(283,274) 1,944,599 938,446 42,533 841,086 

(1,031,119) (1,026,184) (970,947) (893,081) (899,190) 

(11,552) (9,982) (10,193) (9,222) (9,739) 

(8,179) (3,750) (36,154) (98,865) 72,862 

$ (628,141) $ 1,658,061 $ 655,807 $ (283,538) $ 645,709 

15,010,479 13,352,418 12,696,611 12,980,149 12,334,440 

$ 14,382,338 $ 15,010,479 $ 13,352,418 $ 12,696,611 $ 12,980,149 

$ 2,351,530 $ 1,194,303 $ 2,626,030 $ 2,681,364 $ 1,885,743 

85.95% 92.63% 83.57% 82.56% 87.31% 

$ 3,113,909 $ 3,223,919 $ 3,166,627 $ 2,902,204 $ 2,726,345 

75.52% 37.05% 82.93% 92.39% 69.17% 
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JONESCOUNTY,TEXAS 

SCHEDULE OF CONTRlBUTIONS 

TEXAS COUNTY & DISTRICT RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2022 

2022 2021 2020 

Actuarially Determined Contribution $ 654,698 $ 573,653 $ 

Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially Determined Contributions (654,698) (573,653) 

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ - $ - $ 

Covered Employee Payroll $ 4,530,778 $ 4,054,085 $ 

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Employee Payroll 14.45% 14.15% 

Note: GASB Codification, Vol. 2, P20.146 requires that the data in this schedule be presented as of the governmental entity's respective 
flsclll years as opposed to the lime periods covered by the measurement dates ending December 31 for the respective fiscal years. 

As required by GASB 68, this schedule will be built prospectively as the information becomes available until IO years of information is 
presented. 
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530,154 

(530,154) 

3,451,522 

15.36% 



EXHIBITF-3 

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 

$ 469,842 $ 487,950 $ 527,704 $ 512,991 $ 471,898 

(469,945) (488,009) (527,704) (512,991) (471,898) 

$ (I 03) $ (59) $ - $ - $ 

$ 3,238,059 $ 3,113,909 $ 3,224,158 $ 3,166,627 $ 2,902,204 

14.51% 15.67% 16.37% 16.20% 16.26% 
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JONESCOUNTY,TEXAS 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

A. Notes to Schedules for the TCDRS Pension 
Valuation Date: Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated each December 

31, two yeai-s prior to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are 
reported. 

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates: 

Actuarial Cost 
Method 
Amortization 
Method 
Remaining Amortization 
Period 
Asset Valuation 
Method 
Inflation 

Salary Increases 

Investment Rate of 
Return 
Retirement Age 

Mortality 

Changes in Assumptions 
and Methods Reflected in 
the. Schedule of Employer 
Contributions* 

Changes in Plan 
Provisions Reflected in the 
Schedule of Employer 
Contributions* 

Entry Age (level percentage of pay) 

Level percentage of payroll, closed 

15.8 years (based on contribution rate calculated in 12/31/2021 
valuation) 
5-ycar smoothed market 

2.50% 

Varies by age and service. 4.7% average over career including 
inflation. 
7.50%, net of administrative and investment expenses, including 
inflation 
Members who a1·e eligible for service retirement are assumed to 
commence receiving benefit payments based on age. The average 
age at service retirement fo1· recent retirees is 61. 

135% of the Pub-2010 General Retirees Table for males and 120% 
of the Pub-2010 General Retirees Table for females, both projected 
with 100% of the MP-2021 Ultimate scale after 2010. 

2015: New in.fl.ation, mortality and other assumptions were 
reflected. 2017: New mortality assumptions were reflected. 
2019: New inflation, mortality and other assumptions were 
reflected. 

2017: New Annuity Purchase Rates were reflected for benefits 
earned after 2017. 

2018: No changes in plan provisions were reflected in the Schedule. 

2019: No changes in plan provisions were reflected in the Schedule. 

2020: No changes in plan provisions were reflected in the Schedule. 

2021: No changes in plan provisions were reflected in the Schedule. 

*Only cha11ges that affect the he11efit amount am/ that are effective 2015 and later are shown in the 
N(Jte:!J' to Schedule. 
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JONESCOUNTY,TEXAS 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 
B. Stewa1·dship, Compliance and Accountability 

Budget 

The County is legally required to adopt an annual budget (on a l2-month basis) for the County's funds. The 
Commissioners Court reviews and adopts the annual budget prior to the beginning of the fiscal year. 
Jncluded in the budget process are county resolutions and ordinances establishing property tax rates and 
other fees and charges that will be in effect during the fiscal year. 

Expenditures Exceeding Appi-opriation 

The following is disclosed related to expenditures and budget appropriations: 
• The current year expenditures did not exceed appropriations in any departmental category in the 

General Fund as detailed in Exhibit F-1 "Budgetary Comparison Schedule -General Fund". 
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JONESCOUNTY,TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2022 

212 
Data .IP 
Control Technology 
Codes Fund 

ASSETS 
1010 Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 12,639 
1030 Investments • Current 

1050 Taxes Receivable 

1051 Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes (credit) 

1260 Due from Other Governments 

1300 Due from Other Funds 

1390 Due from Others 

1000 Total Assets $ 12,639 

LIABILITIES 

2010 Accounts Payable $ 
2070 Intergovernmental Payable 

2300 Advance from Other Funds 

2000 Total Liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

2601 Unavailable Revenue• Property Taxes 

2600 Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 

FUND BALANCES 

Restricted Fund Balance: 

3450 Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction 

34HO Retirement of Long-Term Debt 

3490 Other Restricted Fund Balance 12,639 
Committed Fund Balance: 

3530 Capital Expenditures for Equipment 

3545 Other Committed Fund Balance 

Assigned Fund Balance: 

3590 Other Assigned Fund Balance 

3000 Total Fund Balances 12,639 

4000 Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows & Fwid Balances $ 12,639 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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213 

Capital 

Murder 
Fund 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

214 215 

Courthouse 
Truancy Security 

Fund Fund 

2 $ I 0,631 $ 25,664 

2 $ I 0,631 $ 25,664 

$ $ 

2 10,631 25,664 

2 10,631 25,664 

2 $ 10,631 $ 25,664 



EXHIBIT G-1 (Cont'd) 

216 217 218 219 221 222 223 224 
Records DA County Road& Road& Road& Road& 

Management Special Acct. Attorney LEOSE Bridge Fund Bridge Fund Bridge Fund Bridge Fund 
Fund Fund Pretrial Fund Funds Pct. I Pct 2 Pct. 3 Pct. 4 

$ 28,572 $ I, 180 $ 408 $ 7,578 $ 259,515 $ 155,566 $ 382,037 $ 606,186 

129,375 129,375 129,375 129,375 
(6,216) (6,216) (6,216) (6,216) 

3,170 182,829 18,687 18,687 18,687 
328,803 

668 668 668 668 
$ 28,572 $ 1,180 $ 408 $ 10,748 $ 894,974 $ 298,080 $ 524,551 $ 748,700 

$ $ $ $ $ 39,189 $ 1,075 $ 3,394 $ 685 

732,625 119,536 132,067 229,268 

771,814 120,611 135,461 229,953 

123,160 123,160 123,160 123,160 

123,160 123,160 123,160 123,160 

10,748 

28,572 I, 180 408 

54,309 265,930 395,587 

28,572 1,180 408 10,748 54,309 265,930 395,587 

$ 28,572 $ 1,180 $ 
==== 

408 $ 10,748 $ 894,974 $ 298,080 $ 524,551 $ 748,700 
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JONESCOUNTY,TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2022 

225 
Data Appellate 
Control 

Judicial 
Codes Fund 

ASSETS 

1010 Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 925 
1030 Investments - Current 

1050 Taxes Receivable 

1051 Allowance for Uncol\ectible Taxes (credit) 

1260 Due from Other Governments 

1300 Due from Other Funds 

1390 Due from Others 

1000 Total Assets $ 925 

LIABILITIES 
2010 Accounts Payable $ 
2070 Intergovernmental Payable 

2300 Advance from Other Funds 

2000 Total Liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

2601 Unavailable Revenue • Property Taxes 

2600 Total Deferred lnflows of Resources 

FUND BALANCES 

Restricted Fund Balance: 

3450 Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction 

3480 Retirement of Long• Term Debt 

3490 Other Restricted Fund Balance 

Committed Fund Balance: 

3530 Capital Expenditures for Equipment 

3545 Other Committed Fund Balance 

Assigned FWld Balance: 

3590 Other Assigned Fund Balance 925 

3000 Total Fund Balances 925 

4000 Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows & Fund Balances $ 925 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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226 
Court 

Facility fee 

Fund 

$ 3,700 

$ 3,700 

$ 

3,700 

3,700 

$ 3,700 

227 228 
Language County 

Access Jury 

fund Fund 

$ 977 $ 1,850 

$ 977 $ 1,850 

$ $ 

977 1,850 

977 1,850 

$ 977 $ 1,850 



EXHIBIT G-1 (Cont'd) 

229 230 231 232 233 234 239 240 
County Ct. Initiated Lateral Lateral Lateral Lateral Emergency 
RESO Guardianship Road Fund Road Fund Road Fund Road Fund Management Jury 
Fund Fund Pct. I Pct. 2 Pct. 3 Pct. 4 Fund Fund 

$ 1,685 $ 1,660 $ 57,869 $ 8,772 $ 12,598 $ 8,538 $ (6,000) $ 132,550 

83,170 
(3,996) 

6,000 12,762 
3,595 

$ 1,685 $ 1,660 $ 57,869 $ 8,772 $ 12,598 $ 8,538 $ 3,595 $ 224,486 

$ 855 $ $ $ $ $ $ 3,595 $ 

855 3,595 

79,174 

79,174 

57,869 8,772 12,598 

145,312 

830 1,660 8,538 

830 1,660 57,869 8,772 12,598 8,538 145,312 

$ 1,685 $ 1,660 $ 57,869 $ 8,772 $ 12,598 $ 8,538 $ 3,595 $ 224,486 
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JONES COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2022 

241 
Data 

Security 
Control Officer 
Codes Fund 

ASSETS 

1010 Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 894 
1030 Investments - Current 

1050 Taxes Receivable 

1051 Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes (credit) 

1260 Due from Other Governments 

1300 Due from Other Funds 

1390 Due from Others 

l000 Total Assets $ 894 

LIABILITIES 

2010 Accounts Payable $ 
2070 Intergovernmental Payable 

2300 Advance from Other Funds 

2000 Total Liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

2601 Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes 

2600 Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 

FUND BALANCES 

Restricted Fund Balance: 

3450 Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction 

3480 Retirement of Long-Tenn Debt 

3490 Other Restricted Fund Balance 

Committed Fund Balance: 

3530 Capital Expenditures for Equipment 

3545 Other Committed Fund Balance 894 
Assigned Fund Balance: 

3590 Other Assigned Fund Balance 

3000 Total Fund Balances 894 

4ooo Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows & Fund Balances $ 894 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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242 

CESF 

Jail Grant 

Fund 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

245 246 

Law HAVA 
Library Cares Grant 

Fund rund 

$ 23,538 $ 

$ 23,538 $ 

$ $ 

23,538 

23,538 

$ 23,538 $ 



247 248 251 
HAVA Co. Attorney Coronavirus 
Security Supplement Relief 

Grant .Fund Fund Fund 

$ $ 32,284 $ 

$ $ 32,284 $ 
===== 

$ $ $ 

32,284 

32,284 

$ $ 32,284 $ 
===== 

255 
Permanent 

Improvement 

Fund 

$ 599,472 $ 

83,170 
(3,996) 
12,014 

$ 690,660 $ 

256 

Tech. 

Upgrade 
Grant 

===== 

$ $ 

79,174 

79,174 

611,486 

611,486 

$ 690,660 $ 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

EXHIBIT G-1 (Cont'd) 

257 258 259 
BVP Co. Attorney DA&DA 

Grant Hot Check Employee 
Fund Fund Supplement Fd 

$ 1,425 $ 

$ 1,425 $ 10 
===== 

$ $ 

1,425 

1,425 

$ 1,425 $ 
===== 



JONESCOUNTY,TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2022 

260 
Dala 

EMC 
Control 

Grant 
Codes Fund 

ASSETS 

1010 Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 
1030 Investments - Current 

1050 Taxes Receivable 

1051 Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes (credit) 

1260 Due from Other Govenunents 

1300 Due from Other Funds 

1390 Due from Others 

1000 Total Assets $ 

LIABILITIES 

2010 Accounts Payable $ 
2070 Intergovernmental Payable 

2300 Advance from Other Funds 

2000 Total Liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

2601 Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes 

2600 Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 

FUND BALANCES 

Restricted Fund Balance: 

3450 Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction 

3480 Retirement of Long-Term Debt 

3490 Other Restricted Fund Balance 

Committed Fund Balance: 

3530 Capital Expenditures for Equipment 

3545 Other Committed Fund Balance 

Assigned Fund Balance: 

3590 Other Assigned Fund Balance 

3000 Total Fund Balances 

4000 Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows & Fund Balances $ 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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261 
Justice Court 

Supp01t 
Fund 

$ 5,297 

$ 5,297 

$ 

5,297 

5,297 

$ 5,297 

262 263 
Child Abuse District Ct. 

Prevention Technology 
Fund Fund 

$ 2,846 $ 9,056 

$ 2,846 $ 9,056 

$ $ 

2,846 

9,056 

2,846 9,056 

$ 2,846 $ 9,056 



EXHIBIT G-1 (Cont'd) 

264 266 267 268 269 270 271 272 
District Clrk District Clrk County Clerk County Clerk County Clerk County Cleric/ Courthouse Election 

Court Records Records Archives Records Vital Stats District Clrk Technology Services 
Preservation Management Fund Management fund Tech Fund Fund Contract Fund 

$ 18,005 $ L0,429 $ 159,219 $ 167,360 $ 1,170 $ $ 18,812 $ 2,891 

$ 18,005 $ 10,429 $ 159,219 $ 167,360 $ 1,170 $ $ 18,812 $ 2,891 
==== ==== 

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ 1,933 $ 

1,933 

18,005 10,429 159,219 167,360 1,170 2,891 

16,879 

18,005 10,429 159,219 167,360 1,170 16,879 2,891 

$ 18,005 $ 10,429 $ 159,219 $ 167,360 $ 1,170 $ $ 18,812 $ 2,891 
= = == ===== 
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JONES COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2022 

275 
Data 

Jail 
Control Project 
Codes Fund 

ASSETS 

1010 Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 78,100 
1030 Investments - Current 

1050 Taxes Receivable 

1051 Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes (credit) 

1260 Due from Other Governments 38,025 
1300 Due from Other Funds 

1390 Due from Others 

1000 Total Assets $ 116,125 

LIABILITIES 

2010 Accounts Payable $ 
2070 Intergovernmental Payable 37,262 
2300 Advance from Other Funds 

2000 Total Liabilities 37,262 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

2601 Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes 

2600 Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 

FUND BALANCES 

Restricted Fund Balance: 

3450 Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction 

3480 Retirement of Long-Term Debt 

3490 Other Restricted Fund Balance 

Committed Fund Balance: 

3530 Capital Expenditures for Equipment 

3545 Other Committed Fund Balance 

Assigned Fund Balance: 

3590 Other Assigned Fund Balance 78,&63 

3000 Total Fund Balances 78,863 

4000 Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows & Fund Balances $ 116,125 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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276 

27th 

Payroll 

Fund 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

278 283 

Facility Juv. Prob. 

Revenue State Aid-Dir 
Fund Superv. Fund 

$ 1,227,312 $ (1,672) 

97,182 

1,672 

$ 1,324,494 $ 

$ $ 

1,324,494 

1,324,494 

$ 1,324,494 $ 



EXHIBIT G-1 (Cont'd) 

284 285 286 287 288 289 292 293 
Juv. Prob. Juv. Prob. Juv. Prob. Juv. Prob. Juv. Prob. Juv. Prob. Juv. Prob. Juv. Prob. 
State Aid Commitment Mental Health RDAReimb. Risk& Needs E Grant State Aid Local 

Detention Fd. Diversion Fd. Servies Fund Grant Pund Assessment F d Fund Court Intake Fund 

$ 1,357 $ $ $ (3,895) $ $ 43,592 $ 460 $ (3,707) 

3,&95 3,707 

$ 1,357 $ 
===== 

$ $ $ $ 43,592 $ 460 $ 
===== 

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

1,357 43,592 460 

1,357 43,592 460 

$ 1,357 $ $ $ $ $ 43,592 $ 460 $ 
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JONES COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2022 

Total 
Data 

Nonmajor 
Control 

Special 
Codes 

Revenue Funds 

ASSETS 

1010 Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 4,109,357 
1030 lnvestments - Current 
1050 Taxes Receivable 683,840 
1051 Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes ( credit) (32,856) 
1260 Due from Other Governments 408,043 
1300 Due from Other Funds 341,672 
1390 Due from Others 2,672 
1000 Total Assets $ 5,512,728 

LIABILITIES 

2010 Accounts Payable $ 50,726 
2070 Intergovernmental Payable 37,262 
2300 Advance from Other Funds 1,213,496 

2000 Total Liabilities 1,301,484 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

2601 Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes 650,988 
2600 Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 650,988 

FUND BALANCES 

Restricted Fund Balance: 

3450 Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction 138,252 
)480 Retirement of Long-Term Debt 
3490 Other Restricted Fund Balance l, 796,683 

Committed Fund Balance: 

3530 Capital Expenditures for Equipment 611,486 
3545 Other Committed Fund Balance 911,195 

Assigned Fund Balance: 

3590 Other Assigned Fund Balance 102,640 
3000 Total Fwid Balances 3,560,256 

4000 Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows & Fund Balances $ 5,512,728 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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579 

Interest and 

Sinking 

Fund 

$ 516,505 

369,64 l 
(18,146) 

42,326 

$ 910,326 

$ 

351,495 

351,495 

558,831 

558,831 

$ 910,326 

580 590 

Matured PFC 

Bonds )fond Account 

Fund Fund 

$ $ 
235,377 

37,263 

$ $ 272,640 

$ $ 

272,640 

272,640 

$ $ 272,640 



EXHIBIT G•l 

Total Total 
Nonmajor Nonmajor 

Debt Service Governmental 
Funds Funds 

$ 516,505 $ 4,625,862 
235,377 235,377 
369,641 1,053,481 
(l8, 146) (51,002) 
79,589 487,632 

341,672 
2,672 

$ 1,182,966 $ 6,695,694 

$ $ 50,726 
37,262 

1,213,496 

1,301,484 

351,495 1,002,483 

351,495 1,002,483 

138,252 
831,471 831,471 

1,796,683 

611,486 
911,195 

102,640 

831,471 4,391,727 

$ 1,182,966 $ 6,695,694 
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Data 

Control 

Codes 

REVENUES: 
Taxes; 

JONESCOUNTY,TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

212 

JP 

Technology 

Fund 

213 

Capital 
Murder 
Fund 

214 

Truancy 

fund 

215 

Courthouse 

Security 
Fund 

5110 Property Taxes $ - $ - $ - $ 
5190 Penalty and Interest on Taxes 
5200 Licenses and Penuits 
5300 Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants 
5400 Charges for Services 
5510 Fines 
5610 Investment Earnings 
5700 other Revenue 

5020 Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

0100 General Government 
0120 Judicial 

0230 
0290 

0310 

0490 

0710 
0720 

6030 

Public Safety: 

Corrections 
Other Public Safety 

Public Works: 

Highways and Streets 
Health and Welfare: 

Other (Define) 
Debt Service: 

Principal on Debt 
Interest on Debt 

Total Expenditures 

1100 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
7912 Sale of Real and Personal Property 
7915 Transfers In 
8911 Transfers Out 

7080 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

1200 Net Change in Fund Balance 

0100 Fund Balance - January I (Beginning) 

5,921 

5,921 

1,517 

1,517 

4,404 

4,404 

8,235 

6,177 

6,177 

6,175 

6,175 

2 

2 

7,195 

7,195 

31 

31 

7,164 

7,164 

3,466 

15,821 

221 

16,042 

21,222 

21,222 

(5,180) 

15,876 

15,876 

10,696 

14,967 

3000 Fund Balance - December 31 (Ending) $ 12,639 $ 2 $ 10,630 $ 25,663 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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216 
Records 

217 
DA 

218 
County 

Management Special Acct. Attorney 

Fund Fund Pretrial Fund 

$ - $ - $ -

10 3,355 

231 

241 3,355 

140 3,147 

140 3,147 

101 208 

101 208 

28,471 1,180 200 

$ 28,572 $ 1,180 $ 408 

$ 

$ 

219 221 
Road& 

222 
Road& 

EXHIBIT G-2 (Cont'd) 

223 
Road& 

224 
Road& 

LEOSE 

Funds 

Bridge Fund Bridge Fund Bridge Fund Bridge Fund 

Pct. I Pct. 2 Pct. 3 Pct 4 

- $ 172,680 $ 172,680 $ 172,680 $ 172,680 

93,438 93,438 93,438 93,438 
6,247 l,277,127 64,080 46,905 37,731 

40,958 40,958 40,958 40,958 
27,190 27,190 27,190 27,190 

1,744 1,959 4,320 6,324 
51 7,985 1,826 

6,247 1,613,188 400,305 393,476 380,147 

3,715 

1,600,084 515,862 543,388 574,395 

3,715 1,600,084 515,862 543,388 574,395 

2,532 13,104 (I 15,557) (149,912) (194,248) 

14,325 
348,803 20,000 20,000 20,000 

(345,957) 

2,846 20,000 20,000 34,325 

2,532 15,950 (95,557) (129,912) (159,923) 

8,217 (15,950) 149,867 395,842 555,510 

10,749 $ - $ 54,310 $ 265,930 $ 395,587 
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JONESCOUNTY,TEXAS 
COMBINING ST A TEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDlTURES AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

Data 

Control 

Codes 

REVENUES: 
Taxes: 

5110 Property Taxes 
5190 Penalty and Interest on Taxes 
5200 Licenses and Pennits 
5300 Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants 
5400 Charges for Services 
5510 Fines 
5610 Investment Earnings 
5700 Other Revenue 

5020 Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

0100 General Government 
0 J 20 Judicial 
0230 Corrections 
0290 Other Public Safety 

Public Works: 

0310 Highways and Streets 
Health and Welfare: 

0490 Other (Define) 
Debt Service: 

0710 Principal on Debt 
0720 Interest on Debt 

6030 Total Expenditures 

1100 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
7912 Sale of Real and Personal Property 
7915 Transfers In 
8911 Transfers Out 

7080 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

1200 Net Change in Fund Balance 

0100 Fund Balance - January I (Beginning) 

3000 Fund Balance - December 31 (Ending) 

$ 

$ 

225 
Appellate 

Judicial 
Fund 

226 
Court 

Facility F cc 

Fund 

- $ - $ 

925 3,700 

925 3,700 

925 3,700 

925 3 ,700 

925 $ 3,700 $ 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
86 

227 
Language 

Access 

Fund 

- $ 

1,247 

1,247 

270 

270 

977 

977 

977 $ 

228 
County 

Jury 

Fund 

1,850 

1,850 

1,850 

1,850 

1,850 



EXHIBIT G-2 (Cont'd) 

229 230 231 232 233 234 239 240 
County Ct. Initiated Lateral Lateral Lateral Lateral Emergency 
RESO Guardianship Road Fund Road Fund Road Fund Road Fund Management Jury 
Fund Fund Pct. I Pct. 2 Pct. 3 Pct. 4 Fund Fund 

$ - $ - $ - $ . $ - $ - $ - $ 111,020 

8,772 8,772 8,772 8,772 12,926 
3,834 1,660 239 

1,016 
18,000 

3,834 1,660 8,772 8,772 8,772 8,772 18,000 125,201 

87,805 

3,004 

8,793 9,547 234 50,338 

3,004 8,793 9,547 234 50,338 87,805 

830 1,660 8,772 (21) (775) 8,538 (32,338) 37,396 

32,338 
(15,876) 

32,338 (I 5,876) 

830 1,660 8,772 (21) (775) 8,538 21,520 

49,097 8,793 13,373 123,792 

$ 830 $ 1,660 $ 57,869 $ 8,772 $ 12,598 $ 8,538 $ - $ 145,312 
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JONES COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 

FUNDBALANCES-NONMAJORGOVERNMENTALFUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

Data 

Control 

Codes 

REVENUES: 

Taxes: 
5110 Property Taxes 
5190 Penalty and Interest on Taxes 
5200 Licenses and Permits 
5300 Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants 
5400 Charges for Services 
5510 Fines 
5610 Investment Earnings 
5700 Other Revenue 

5020 Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 

Current: 
0 l 00 General Government 
0120 Judicial 

Public Safety: 
0230 Corrections 
0290 Other Public Safety 

Public Works: 
0310 Highways and Streets 

Health and Welfare: 
0490 Other (Define) 

Debt Service: 
0710 Principal on Debt 
0720 Interest on Debt 

6030 Total Expenditures 

1100 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
7912 Sale of Real and Personal Property 
7915 Transfers Jn 
8911 Transfers Out 

7080 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

1200 Net Change in Fund Balance 

0100 Fund Balance - January 1 (Beginning) 

3000 Fund Balance - December 31 (Ending) 

$ 

$ 

241 
Security 

Officer 

fund 

- $ 

56,170 

56,170 

(56,170) 

56,660 
(50,000) 

6,660 

(49,510) 

50,404 

894 $ 

The notes to the :financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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242 
CESF 

Jail Grant 
Fund 

- $ 

- $ 

245 
Law 

Library 

Fund 

246 
HAVA 

Cii!"es Grant 

Pund 

- $ 

6,510 

6,510 

4,955 

4,955 

1,555 

1,555 

21,983 

23,538 $ 
===== 



EXl IIBIT G-2 (Cont'd) 

247 248 251 255 256 257 258 259 
HAVA Co. Attorney Coronavirus Permanent Tech. RVP Co. Attorney Di\&DA 
Security Supplement Relief Improvement Upgrade Grant Hot Check Employee 

Grant Fund Fund Fund Fund Grant Fund Fund Supplement Fd 

$ - $ - $ - $ 111,020 $ - $ - $ - $ 

42,000 
731 

4,798 

42,000 115,818 731 

85,321 
1,460 

51,218 

51,218 85,321 1,460 

(9,218) 30,497 (729) 

9,194 
(339,495) 

9,194 (339,495) 

(24) (339,495) 30,497 (729) 

32,308 339,495 580,989 2,154 10 

$ - $ 32,284 $ - $ 611,486 $ - $ - $ 1,425 $ 10 
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IJata 

Control 

Codes 

REVENUES: 

Taxes: 

JONESCOUNTY,TEXAS 
COMBINING ST A TEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

260 
EMC 
Grant 

Fund 

261 

Justice Court 

Support 

Fund 

262 
Child Abuse 
Prevention 

Fund 

263 

District Ct. 
'fochnology 

Fund 

5110 Property Taxes $ - $ - $ - $ 
5190 Penalty and Interest on Taxes 
5200 Licenses and Permits 
5300 Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants 
5400 Charges for Services 
5510 Fines 
5610 Investment Earnings 
5700 Other Revenue 

5020 Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 

Current: 
0 l 00 General Government 
0120 Judicial 

Public Safety: 
0230 Corrections 
0290 Other Public Safety 

Public Works: 
0310 Highways and Streets 

Health and Welfare: 
0490 Other (Define) 

Debt Service: 
0710 Principal on Debt 
0720 Interest on Debt 

6030 Total Expenditures 

l 100 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
7912 Sale of Real and Personal Property 
7915 Transfers In 
8911 Transfers Out 

7080 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

1200 Net Change in Fund Balance 

0100 Fund Balance - January 1 (Beginning) 

3000 Fund Balance - December 31 (Ending) $ 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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5,297 

5,297 

5,297 

5,297 

- $ 5,297 $ 

1,167 

1,167 

1,167 

1,167 

1,679 

2,846 $ 

459 

459 

459 

459 

8,597 

9,056 
===== 



EXJ [IBJT U-2 (Cont'd) 

264 266 267 268 269 270 271 272 
District Clrk District Clrk County Clerk County Clerk County Clerk County Clerk/ Courthouse Election 

Court Records Records 

Preservation Management 

$ - $ - $ 

7,381 

7,381 10 

7,381 10 

7,381 10 

10,624 10,419 

$ 18,005 $ 10,429 $ 

Archives Records 

~und Management 

- $ - $ 

40,330 

40,330 

to 

40,320 

7,576 

7,576 

47,896 

111,323 

159,219 $ 

41,290 

1,200 

42,490 

42,480 

42,4&0 

124,880 

167,360 $ 

91 

Vital Stats District Clrk 1·echnology Services 

Fund Tech Pund Fund Contract Fund 

- $ - $ - $ 

713 

544 
713 544 

50,210 
730 

730 50,210 

(17) (50,210) 544 

50,000 
(7,576) 

(7,576) 50,000 

(7,593) (210) 544 

8,763 L 7,089 2,347 

1,170 $ - $ 16,879 $ 2,891 



JONESCOUNTY,TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3 L, 2022 

Data 

Control 

Codes 

REVENUES: 

Taxes: 
5110 Property Taxes 
5190 Penalty and Interest on Taxes 
5200 Licenses and Permits 
5300 Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants 
5400 Charges for Services 
5510 Fines 
5610 Investment Earnings 
5700 Other Revenue 

5020 Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 

Current: 
0100 General Government 
0120 Judicial 

Public Safety: 

0230 Corrections 
0290 Other Public Safety 

Public Works: 

0310 Highways and Streets 
Health and Welfare: 

0490 Other (Define) 
Debt Service: 

0710 Principal on Debt 
0720 Interest on Debt 

6030 Total Expenditures 

1100 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
7912 Sale of Real and Personal Property 
7915 Transfers In 
891 L Transfers Out 

7080 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

1200 Net Change in Fund Balance 

0 L 00 Fund Balance - January 1 (Beginning) 

275 276 
Jail 27th 

Project Payroll 
Fund Fund 

$ - $ 

313,253 

313,253 

3,575 

3,575 

309,678 

(246,296) 
(246,296) 

63,382 

15,481 

278 
Facility 
Revenue 

Fund 

- $ -

1,008 
1,350,946 

1,351,954 

680,833 

680,833 

671,121 

26,952 
(26,952) 

671,121 

653,373 

283 

Juv. Prob. 
State Aid-Dir 

Supe!"'I. Fund 

$ 

83,204 

83,204 

90,130 

90,130 

(6,926) 

1,672 

1,672 

(5,254) 

5,254 

3000 Fund Balance - December 31 (Ending) $ 78,863 $ - $ L,324,494 $ 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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284 285 286 287 288 
Juv. Prob. Juv. Prob. Juv. Prob. Juv. Prob. Juv. Prob. 

State Aid Commitment Mental Health RDAReimb. Risk& Needs 

Detention Fd. Diversion Fd. Servies Fund Grant Fund Assessment f d 

$ 

$ 

- $ 

108,824 

108,824 

107,467 

107,467 

1,357 

1,357 

- $ 

595 

595 

1,433 

1,433 

(838) 

(838) 

838 

- $ 

510 

510 

1,603 

1,603 

(1,093) 

(1,093) 

1,093 

- $ - $ 

1,749 

1,749 

3,895 1,749 

3,895 1,749 

(3,895) 

3,895 

3,895 

1,357 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 
==== = ====== ==== ===== 
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EX! IIRIT G-2 (Cont'd) 

289 292 
Juv. Prob. Juv. Prob. 

R Grant State Aid 

Fund Court Intake 

- $ - $ 

95,459 

95,460 

95,000 

95,000 

460 

460 

43,592 

43,592 $ 460 $ 

293 
Juv. Prob. 

Local 

Fund 

1,000 
1,000 

30,675 

30,675 

(29,675) 

24,587 

24,587 

(5,088) 

5,088 



COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 
FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

Total 
Data Nonm1J:ior 
Control Special 
Codes Revenue Funds 

REVENUES: 

Taxes: 
5110 Property Taxes $ 912,760 
5190 Penalty and Interest on Taxes 
5200 Licenses and Permits 373,752 
5300 Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants 2,138,339 
5400 Charges for Services 302,388 
5510 Fines 113,385 
5610 Investment Earnings 22,821 
5700 Other Revenue 1,380,353 

5020 Total Revenues 5,243,798 

EXPENDITURES: 

Current: 
0100 General Government 135,53 l 
0120 Judicial 494,071 

Public Safety: 
0230 Corrections 54,793 
0290 Other Public Safety 28,242 

Public· Works: 
0310 Highways and Streets 3,302,641 

Health and Welfare: 
0490 Other (Define) 680,833 

Debt Service: 
0710 Principal on Debt 
0720 Interest on Debt 

6030 Total Expendimres 4,696,111 

1100 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) 547,687 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
7912 Sale of Real and Personal Property 14,325 
791 5 Transfers In 637,553 
8911 Transfers Out (1,032,152) 

7080 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (380,274) 

1200 Net Change in Fund Balance 167,413 

0100 Fund Balance - January 1 (Beginning) 3,392,843 

3000 Fund Balance - December 31 (Ending) $ 3,560,256 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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579 

Interest and 

Sinking 
Fund 

$ 440,250 
5,017 

3,085 

448,352 

481,480 

481,480 

(33,128) 

(33,128) 

591,959 

$ 558,831 

580 

Matured 
Bonds 
Fund 

$ 

$ 

590 

PFC 

Bond Account 
Fund 

- $ 

1,688 

1,688 

30,000 
43,675 

73,675 

(71,987) 

133,475 

133,475 

61,488 

211,152 

- $ 272,640 



EXHIBJT G-2 

Total Total 

Nonmajor Nonmajor 

Debt Service Governmental 

Funds Funds 

$ 440,250 $ 1,353,010 
5,017 5,017 

373,752 
2,138,339 

302,388 
113,385 

4,773 27,594 
1,380,353 

450,040 5,693,838 

135,531 
494,071 

54,793 
28,242 

3,302,641 

680,833 

511,480 511,480 
43,675 43,675 

555,155 5,251,266 

(105,115) 442,572 

14,325 
133,475 771,028 

(1,032,152) 

133,475 (246,799) 

28,360 195,773 

803,111 4,195,954 

$ 831,471 $ 4,391,727 
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JONESCOUNTY,TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

CUSTODIAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

811 

Liability 

Fund 

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ (26,442) 
Due from Other Governments 72,334 

Total Assets 45,892 

LIABILITIES 
Intergovernmental Payable 45,826 
Due to Others ' 66 

Total Liabilities 45,892 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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&52 
Adult 

Probation 

Agency Fund 

$ -

EXHIBIT G-3 

885 Total 
Departmental 

Cash Custodial 
Accounts Funds 

$ 1,368,637 $ 1,342,195 
72,334 

1,368,637 1,414,529 

417,131 462,957 
951,506 951,572 

1,368,637 1,414,529 



EXHIBIT G-4 
JONESCOUNTY,TEXAS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ADDITIONS, DEDUCTIONS AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
CUSTODIAL FUNDS 

DECEMBER 31, 2022 

811 
Oata 

Control Liability 
Codes Fund 

ADDITIONS: 

Other Revenue $ 

Total Additions 

DEDUCTIONS: 

Personnel Services - Salaries and Wages 

Personnel Services - Employee Benefits 

Other Operating Costs 

Total Deductions 

Change in Net Position 

Total Net Position - January l (Beginning) 

Total Net Position -December 31 (Ending) $ 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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852 885 Total 

Adult Departmental 

Probation Ca~h Custodial 

Agency Fund Accounts Funds 

$ 403,006 $78,221,633 $ 78,624,639 

403,006 78,221,633 78,624,639 

330,783 330,783 

72,223 72,223 

78,221,633 78,221,633 

403,006 78,221,633 78,624,639 

$ $ $ 



REPORTS ON COMPLIANCE, INTERNAL CONTROLS, 
AND FEDERAL A WARDS 
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James E. Rodgers and Company, P.C. 
Certified Public Accountants 

20 Southwest Third Street• PO Box 669 • Hamlin, Texas 79520 • Tel: 325-576-2356 • Fax: 325-576-3525 
E-mail: rodgerscpa@att.net 

Member of Texas Society of CPA's and American Institute of CPA's 
Richard E. Rodgers CPA • Gerald L. Rodgers CPA 

June 12, 2023 

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other 
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing 

Standards 

Honorable County Judge and Commissioners Comprising 
The Commissioners Court of Jones County 
Anson, Texas 79501 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the discretely 
presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Jones County, 
Texas, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise Jones County, Texas's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
June 12, 2023. ' 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and perfotming our audit of the financial statements, we considered Jones County, Texas's internal 
control over financial repo1ting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Jones County, Texas's internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Jones County, Texas's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements 
will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, 
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to he material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 
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James E. Rodgers and Company, P.C. 

Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Jones County, Texas's financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we perfonned tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of 
our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as 
item 2022-00 I . 

County's Response to Finding 

Jones County's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. Jones County's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

Respectfully submitted, 

James E. Rodgers and Company, P.C. 
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Member of Texas Society of CPA's and American Institute of CPA's 
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June 12, 2023 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

Honorable County Judge and Commissioners Comprising 
The Commissioners Court of Jones County, Texas 
Anson, Texas 79501 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Jones County, Texas's compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified as 
subject to audit in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Jones 
County, Texas's major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2022. Jones County, Texas's major 
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, Jones County, Texas complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
refen-ed to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year 
ended December 31, 2022. 

Basis/or Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Un[form Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of Jones County, Texas and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Jones County, Texas's compliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above. 

Responsibilities of Management/or Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, 
statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to Jones County, Texas's 
federal programs. 

.AICPA) 
101 
Governmental 
Audit Quality Center 



James E. Rodgers and Company, P.C. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on Jones County, 
Texas's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Unifonn Guidance will always detect material noncompliance 
when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered 
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment 
made by a reasonable user of the repo11 on compliance about Jones County, Texas's compliance with the 
requirements of each major federal program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, 
and the Uniform Guidance, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, 
evidence regarding Jones County, Texas's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to 
above and perfonning such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding of Jones County, Texas's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on 
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Jones County, Texas's internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over 
compliance that we identified during the audit. 

Other Matters 

The results of our auditing procedures did not disclose any instance of noncompliance which is required to be 
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which therefore is not described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Our opinion on each major federal program is not modified with 
respect to these matters. 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on Jones County, Texas's 
response (not applicable) to the noncompliance findings identified (none) in our audit described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Jones County, Texas's response was not subjected to 
the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the 
response. 
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a 
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important 
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Respectfully submitted, 

James E. Rodgers and Company, P.C. 
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JONES COUNTY, TEXAS 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

I. Summary of the Auditor's Results: 

The type of auditor's report opinion on whether the financial statements 
of the County were prepared in accordance with GAAP (generally 

Unmodified ]. accepted accounting- standards): 

Internal control over financial reporting during the audit of the financial 
2. statements: 

Significant deficiencies in internal control identified that are not 
(a) considered to be material weaknesses. 

Cb) Material weaknesses identified. 

3. Noncompliance, which is material to the financial statements. 

4. Internal Control over maior federal programs: 
Significant deficiencies in internal control identified that are not 

(a) considered to be material weaknesses. 

(b) Material weaknesses identified. 

5. Type of auditor's report opinion on compliance with major programs. Unmodified 

Audit findings that are required to report under Uniform Guidance 2 
6. CFR Section 200.S l 6(a). 

Identification of programs tested as major programs: 
• Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) - Federal 

7. Assistance Listing No. 97.036 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B 
$750,000 8. programs. 

9. County qualified as a low-risk auditee. No 
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JONES COUNTY, TEXAS 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

II. Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Which Are Required to Be Repoi1ed in Accordance 
with Generally Accepted G"vernment Auditing Sta11dards (GA GAS) 

F. d. 2022 001 Ill m1 - : 
a. Condition: The County did not have adequate security over depository funds at all times 

during the current fiscal year. 

b. Criteria: To the extent that funds in the County selected depository are not insured by 
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or the Federal Savings and Loan 
Insurance Corporation, the depository must secure funds in the manner 
provided by law for the security of funds, typically requiring the depository to 
pledge additional securities held by a third party to the County or provide a 
surety bond that is adequate to secure the funds. 

c, Cause: An inadequate dollar amount of additional securities pledged, or surety bond 
provided to the County. Due to the receipt of additional jail operations 
funding (Bluebonnet account) during March 2022, the County was under 
secured for a short period. 

d. Effect: At the date of the highest cash balance (March 4, 2022), the County had 
$15,678,859 total funds on deposit in all accounts. Applicable FDIC coverage 
on those accounts was $542,218 and the fair market value of securities pledged 
to the County was $14,400,000. This resulted in a shortage of security over 
funds of $736,641. The County has an excellent control system for monitoring 
depository security and thus discovered the shortage promptly, and executed a 
transfer to qualified recipients of the Bluebonnet funds in 3 days and reduced 
the excess funds. 

e. Recommendation: The County should continue to monitor monthly the cash balances at the 
depository. Although a compliance violation occurred, the control system 
monitoring the County's depository security worked effectively. 

f. County Response : The County will institute additional cash review for future instances when the 
Treasurer is not able to be in the County to review and execute transfers as 
necessary. 

III. Findings and Questioned Costs Related to the Federal Awards 

F" d. 2022 002 ID lD~ - : 
a. Condition: None 
b. Criteria: NIA 
c, Cause: NIA 
d. Effect: NIA 
e. Recommendation: NIA 
f. County Response: NIA 
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P.O. Box 148 
Anson, Texas 79501 

Phone: 325-823-3741 
Fax: 325-823-4223 

Email: dale.spurgin@co.jones.tx.us 

DALE SPURGIN 
JONES COUNTY JUDGE 

JONES COUNTY, TEXAS 

JAMIE JORDAN 
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT 

SCHEDULE OF STATUS OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

Finding 2021 ·001: There were no prior year audit findings. 

1100 Courthouse Square, Anson, Texas 79501 J 
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P.O. Box 148 
Anson, Texas 79501 

Phone: 325-823-3741 
Fax: 325-823-4223 

Email: dale.spurgin@co.jones.tx.us 

DALE SPURGIN 
JONES COUNTY JUDGE 

JONES COUNTY, TEXAS 
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

JAMIE JORDAN 
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSIST ANT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

The corrective action for Finding 2022-001: 

The County will institute additional cash review for future instances when the Treasurer is not able to be in 
the County to review and execute transfers as necessary. 

1100 Courthouse Square, Anson, Texas 79501 I 
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JONES COUNTY, TEXAS 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AW ARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

(I) 

FEDERAL GRANTORJ' 
PASS-THROUGH GRANTO&' 
PROGRAM or CLUSTER TLTLE 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY 
Programs 

TDEM CORONA VIRUS RELIEF FUNDS 

Total~ . Programs 

STATE OF TEXAS SLFRF FUNDS 

ST ATE OF TEXAS SLFRF FUNDS 

Total ST A TE OF TEXAS SLFRF FUNDS 

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY 

HOMELAND SECURITY 
TDAFEMA 

TDA FEMA 

Total TDA FEMA 

TOTAL HOMELAND SECURITY 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 
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(2) 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number 

21.019 

21 .027 

97.036 

(3) 

Pass-Through 
Entity Identifying 

Number 

515 

4173801 

4255 &4416 

EXHIBIT H-1 

(4) 

Federal 
Expenditures 

$ 339,496 

339,496 

543,576 

543,576 

883,072 

1,2-82,777 

1,282,777 

1,282,777 

$ 2,165,849 



JONES COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR FEDERAL A WARDS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

I. For all Federal programs, the County uses the fund types specified in Governmental Accounting 
Standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Special revenue funds are used to 
account for resources restricted to, or designated for, specific purposes by a grantor. Federal and 
state financial assistance generally is accounted for in a Special Revenue Fund. 

2. The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is dctennined by its 
measurement focus. The Governmental Fund types and Expendable Trust Funds are accounted 
for using a current financial resources measurement focus. All Federal grant funds were 
accounted for in a Special Revenue Fund that is a Governmental Fund type. With this 
measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities and the fund balance are included 
on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases and decreases in net 
current assets. 

3. The modified accrual basis of accounting is used for the Governmental Fund types, the 
Expendable Trust Funds, and Agency Funds. This basis of accounting recognizes revenues in the 
accounting period in which they become susceptible to accrual, i.e., both measurable and 
available, and expenditures in the accounting period in which the fund liability is incurred, if 
measurable, except for un-matured interest on General Long-Term Debt, which is recognized 
when due, and certain compensated absences and claims and judgments, which are recognized 
when the obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources. 

4. Federal grant funds are recorded as earned to the extent of expenditures made wider the 
provisions of the grant, and, accordingly, when such fonds are received, they are recorded as 
deferred revenues until earned. 

5. The period of performance for federal grant funds for the ptwposc of liquidation of outstanding 
obligations made on or before the ending date of the federal project period extended 30 days 
beyond the federal project period ending date, in accordance with provisions in the Unifonn 
Guidance. 

6. Indirect Costs 

The County did not elect to use a di minimis cost rate of 10% as described at 2CFR §200.414(t)­
Indirect (F&A) Costs. 

7. Reconciliation of Federal Awards 

The following is a reconciliation of expenditures of federal awards in the SEF A and federal program 
Revenues in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance of the 
Governmental funds. 

Federal & State program revenues per Exhibit C-3 

E-rate and Other State & Federal Revenue 
Reimbursement not reported to the SEF A 

Total federal expenditures on Exhibit K-1 

$ 40.13 7,228 

37,971,379 

$ 2. 165.849 

8. The County did not make payments to subrecipients during the current year. 
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Last IO Years Ended 

December 31 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 

2020 

2021 

2022 (Fiscal year under audit) 

1000 TOTALS 

JONESCOUNTY,TEXAS 

SCHEDULE OF DELINQUENT TAXES RECETV ABLE 
FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

Tax. Rates 

Maintenance Debt Service 

Various Various 

0.57200 0.07101 

0.59466 0.06698 

0.60932 0.07604 

0.62867 0.07133 

0.62276 0.07196 

0.60697 0.06784 

0.56603 0.05996 

0.56141 0.05754 

0.51221 0.03858 
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Assessed/ Appraised 

Value for 

Tax Purposes 

$ Various 

745,952,999 

747,774,622 

735,175,886 

730,096,619 

742,760,660 

788,459,386 

849,145,604 

898,341,746 

1,055,102,860 



EXHIBIT I-1 

Beginning Current Entire Ending 
Balance Year's Maintenance Debt Service Year's Balance 

January I, 2022 Total Levy Collections Collections Adjustments December 31, 2022 

$ 150,965 $ - $ 6,540 $ 351 $ 12,463 $ 131,611 

34,689 2,053 273 483 31,880 

33,369 2,444 301 1,137 29,487 

41,279 3,803 521 1,059 35,896 

58,350 6,369 837 1,438 49,706 

73,020 11,985 1,474 1,283 58,278 

98,215 18,920 2,252 3,808 73,235 

139,922 37,507 4,230 7,212 90,973 

2,787,324 2,342,222 254,199 17,569 173,334 

5,811,359 2,241,872 177,809 3,391,678 

$ 3,417,133 $ 5,811,359 $ 4,673,715 $ 442,247 $ 46,452 $ 4,066,078 
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Date of Organization 

Date Current Courthouse Built 

Form of Government 

Area in Square Miles 

JONES COUNTY, TEXAS 
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS 

December 31, 2022 

Number of County Employees for Current Year 4th Quarter 

School Districts With Property Located in Jones County: 
Abilene ISO 
Anson ISO 
ClydeCISD 
Hamlin ISD 
Hawley ISO 
Lueders-Avoca ISO 

County Population: 
1900 
1910 
1920 
1930 
1940 
1950 
1990 
2000 
2003 
2004 

County Pi-operty Tax Rates: 
2000 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2012 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2019 
2021 
2022 

7,053 <- Census/ Estimate-> 
24,299 <-Census/ Estimate-> 
22,323 <- Census/ Estimate-> 
24,233 <- Census I Estimate-> 
23,378 <-Census/ Estimate-> 
22,147 <- Census / Census-> 
16,490 <- Census / Estimate-> 
20,785 <- Census / Estimate-> 
19,911 <- Estimate / Census-> 
19,726 <- Estimate / Estimate-> 

County Road Miles (TXDOT)-Centerline Miles 
On-System and Off-System County Total 
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1881 

1910 

Commissioners' Court 

Merkel ISD 
Paint Creek ISO 
RobyCISD 
Stamford lSD 
Trent ISD 

2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2013 
2015 
2020 
2022 

937 

123 

11 

19,544 
19,497 
19,257 
19,197 
18,961 
20,202 
20,037 
19,983 
19,874 
19,663 

$0.63490 
$0.66650 
$0.61570 
$0.58000 
$0.62000 
$0.61590 
$0.66004 
$0.64301 
$0.66164 
$0.67996 
$0.67481 
$0.61895 
$0.55079 

1,469 




